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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Management:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Consumers Energy Company as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, and the related statements of income, retained earnings and cash flows for the years then
ended, included on pages 110 through 121 of the accompanying Michigan Public Service Commission Form
P-521. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

. We conducted our-audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in the ‘Basis of Presentation’ section of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, these
financial statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting requirements of the Michigan
Public Service Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published
accounting releases, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America. -

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Consumers Energy Company as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the accounting requirements of
the Michigan Public Service Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and
published accounting releases.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of

Consumers Energy Company and for filing with the Michigan Public Service Commission and should not
be used for any other purpose.

7> W L\_?‘

February 21, 2013

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, One Detroit Center, 500 Woodward Avenue, Detroit, MI 48226
T: (313) 394 6000, F: (313) 394 6555, WwW.pwc.com/us






INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE FILING OF THE ANNUAL REPORT OF
MAJOR AND NONMAJOR ELECTRIC UTILITIES

GENERAL INFORMATION

I Purpose:
By authority conferred upon the Michigan Public Service Commission by 1909 PA 106, as amended,
being MCL 460.556 et seq. and 1969 PA 306, as amended, being MCL 24.201 et seq., this form is a
regulatory support requirement. It is designed to collect financial and operational information from
public utilities, licensees and others subject to the jurisdiction of the Michigan Public Service
Commission. This report is a nonconfidential public use form.

1. Who Must Submit:

Each major and nonmajor public utility, licensee, or other, as classified in the Commission's Uniform
System of Accounts Prescribed for Public Utilities and Licensees must submit this form.

NOTE: Major utilities means utilities that had, in each of the last three consecutive years,
sales or transmission service that exceeded any one or more of the following:

(a) one million megawatt-hours of total sales;

(b) 100 megawatt-hours of sales for resale;

(c) 500 megawatt-hours of gross interchange out; or

(d) 500 megawatt-hours of wheeling for others (deliveries plus losses)

HI. What and Where to Submit:

(a) Submit an original copy of this form to:

Michigan Public Service Commission (Financial Analysis & Audit Division)
Financial Analysis and Customer Choice Section

4300 W. Saginaw Hwy.

Lansing, Ml 48917

Retain one copy of this report for your files. Also submit the electronic version of this
record to Heather Cantin at the address below or to cantinh@michigan.gov

(b) Submit immediately upon publication, one (1) copy of the latest annual report to
stockholders and any annual financial or statistical report regularly prepared and
distributed to bondholders, security analyst, or industry association. Do not include
monthly and quarterly reports. If reports to stockholders are not prepared, enter "NA"
in column (c) on Page 4, the List of Schedules.) Mail these reports to:

Michigan Public Service Commission (Financial Analysis & Audit Division)
Financial Analysis and Customer Choice Section

4300 W. Saginaw Hwy

Lansing, MI 48917

(c) For the CPA certification, submit with the original submission, or within 30 days after
the filing date for this form, a letter or report:

(i) Attesting to the conformity, in all material aspects, of the below listed
(schedules and) pages with the Commission's applicable Uniform
Systems of Accounts (including applicable notes relating thereto and the
Chief Accountant's published accounting releases), and

(i) Signed by independent certified public accountants or an independent
licensed public accountant, certified or licensed by a regulatory authority or
a state or other political subdivision of the U.S. (See 18 CFR 41.10-41.12
for specific qualifications).
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Schedules Reference Page

Comparative Balance Sheet 110- 113
Statement of Income 114 - 117
Statement of Retained Earnings 118 - 119
Statement of Cash Flows 120 - 121
Notes to Financial Statements 122 - 123

When accompanying this form, insert the letter or report immediately following the
cover sheet. Use the following form for the letter or report unless unusual
circumstances or conditions, explained in the letter or report, demand that it be varied.
Insert parenthetical phrases only when exceptions are reported.

In connection with our regular examination of the financial statements of

for the year ended on which we have reported separately under the
date of we have also reviewed schedules of
Form P-521 for the year filed with the Michigan Public Service
Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and
published accounting releases. Our review for this purpose included such
tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

Based on our review, in our opinion the accompanying schedules

identified in the preceding paragraph (except as noted below) conform in
all material respects with the accounting requirements of the Michigan
Public Service Commission as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of
Accounts and published accounting releases.

State in the letter or report which, if any, of the pages above do not conform to the
Commission's requirements. Describe the discrepancies that exist.

(d) Federal, state, and local governments and other authorized user may obtain additional
blank copies to meet their requirements for a charge from:

Michigan Public Service Commission (Financial Analysis & Audit Division)
Financial Analysis and Customer Choice Section

4300 W. Saginaw Hwy.

Lansing, MI 48917

V. When to Submit
Submit this report form on or before April 30 of the year following the year covered by this report.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

. Prepare this report in conformity with the Uniform System of Accounts (USOA). Interpret all
accounting words and phrases in accordance with the USOA.

Il Enter in whole number (dollars or MWH) only, except where otherwise noted. (Enter cents for
averages and figures per unit where cents are important. The truncating of cents is allowed except on
the four basic financial statements where rounding is required). The amounts shown on all supporting
pages must agree with the amounts entered on the statements that they support. When applying
thresholds to determine significance for reporting purposes, use for balance sheet accounts the
balances
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VL.

VILI.

IX.

Xl

Xil.

VIl

XIiL.

at the end of the current reporting year, and use for statement of income accounts the current year's
accounts.

Complete each question fully and accurately, even if it has been answered in a previous annual report.
Enter the word "NONE" where it truly and completely states the fact.

For any page(s) that is not applicable to respondent, either

(a) Enter the words "NOT APPLICABLE" on the particular page(s), OR

(b) Omit the page(s) and enter "NA", "NONE", or "NOT APPLICABLE" in column (c) on the
List of Schedules, pages 2, 3, 4 and 5.

Complete this report by means which result in a permanent record. Complete the original copy in
permanent black ink or typewriter print, if practical. Additional copies must be clear and readable.

Enter the month, day, and year for all dates. Use customary abbreviations. The "Date of Report"
included in the header of each page is to be completed only for resubmissions (See ViIIl. below). The
date of the resubmission must be reported in the header for all form pages, whether or not they are
changed from the previous filing.

Indicate negative amounts (such as decreases) by enclosing the figures in parentheses ().

When making revisions, resubmit only those pages that have been changed from the original
submission. Submit the same number of copies as required for filing the form. Include with the
resubmission the identification and Attestation page, page 1. Mail dated resubmissions to:

Michigan Public Service Commission (Financial Analysis & Audit Division)
Financial Analysis and Customer Choice Section

4300 W. Saginaw Hwy

Lansing, Ml 48917

Provide a supplemental statement further explaining accounts or pages as necessary. Attach the
supplemental statement (8 1/2 x 11 inch size) to the page being supplemented. Provide the
appropriate identification information, including the title(s) of the page and page number
supplemented.

Do not make references to reports of previous years or to other reports in lieu of required entries,
except as specifically authorized.

Wherever (schedule) pages refer to figures from a previous year, the figures reported must be based
upon those shown by the annual report of the previous year, or an appropriate explanation given as to
why the different figures were used.

Respondents may submit computer printed schedules (reduced to 8 1/2 x 11 inch size) instead of the
preprinted schedules if they are in substantially the same format.

A copy of the FERC Annual Report Form is acceptable to substitute for the same schedules of this
report.

DEFINITIONS

Commission Authorization (Comm. Auth.) - The authorization of the Michigan Public Service
Commission, or any other Commission. Name the Commission whose authorization was obtained and
give the date of the authorization.

Respondent - The person, corporation, licensee, agency, authority, or other legal entity or
instrumentality in whose behalf the report is made.
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MPSC FORM P-521

ANNUAL REPORT OF ELECTRIC UTILITIES, LICENSEES AND OTHERS (Major and Nonmajor)

IDENTIFICATION

01 Exact Legal Name of Respondent

Consumers Energy Company

02 Year of Report

December 31, 2012

03 Previous Name and Date of Change (if name changed during year)

One Energy Plaza, Jackson, Ml 49201

04 Address of Principal Business Office at End of Year (Street, City, St., Zip)

05 Name of Contact Person

Thomas J. Webb

06 Title of Contact Person

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer

07 Address of Contact Person (Street, City, St., Zip)

One Energy Plaza, Jackson, Ml 49201

08 Telephone of Contact Person, Including Area Code:

(517) 788-0351

09 This Reportis:
([ 1An Original

10 Date of Report
(Mo, Da,Yr)

(2) [ X1 A Resubmission June 15, 2015

ATTESTATION

31 of the year of the report.

The undersigned officer certifies that he/she has examined the accompanying report; that to the best of his/her
knowledge, information, and belief, all statements of fact contained in the accompanying report are true and the
accompanying report is a correct statement of the business and affairs of the above named respondent in respect
to each and every matter set forth therein during the period from and including January 1 and including December

01 Name 03 Signature

Thomas J. Webb

02 Title B |
Executive Vice President and Chief / //"
Financial Officer ’ /

04 Date Signed

(Mo, Da,YT)

June 15, 2015
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Name of Respondent This Report Is:
(1) [ 1An Original

Consumers Energy Company (2) [ X ] A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Y1)
6/15/2015

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility)

1. Enter in column (c) the terms "none", "not applicable”, or "NA", as
appropriate, where no information or amounts have been reported for
certain pages. Omit pages where the responses are "none”, "not
applicable", or "NA".

2. The "M" prefix below denotes those pages where
the information requested by the MPSC differs from
that requested by FERC. Each of these pages also
contains the "M" designation on the page itself.

Title of Schedule Reference Remarks
Page No.
(a) (b) (©)
GENERAL CORPORATE
INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
General Information 101
Control Over Respondent & Other Associated Companies M 102
Corporations Controlled by Respondent 103
Officers and Employees M 104
Directors M 105
Security Holders and Voting Powers M 106-107
Important Changes During the Year 108-109
Comparative Balance Sheet M 110-113
Statement of Income for the Year 114-117
Statement of Retained Earnings for the Year 118-119
Statement of Cash Flows 120-121
Notes to Financial Statements 122-123
BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
(Assets and Other Debits)

Summary of Utility Plant and Accumulated Provisions

for Depreciation, Amortization, and Depletion 200-201
Nuclear Fuel Materials 202-203 NONE
Electric Plant in Service M 204-211
Electric Plant Leased to Others 213 NONE
Electric Plant Held for Future Use 214
Construction Work in Progress - Electric M 216
Construction Overheads - Electric 217
General Description of Construction Overhead Procedure M 218
Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant M 219
Nonutility Property M 221
Investment is Subsidiary Companies 224-225
Materials and Supply 227
Allowances 228-229
Extraordinary Property Losses 230B NONE
Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 230B NONE
Other Regulatory Assets M 232
Miscellaneous Deferred Debits M 233
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (Account 190) M 234A-B

BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
(Liabilities and Credits)

Capital Stock 250-251
Capital Stock Subscribed, Capital Stock Liability 252

for Conversion Premium on Capital Stock, and Instaliments

Received on Capital Stock
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Name of Respondent This Report Is:
(1) [ 1An Original

Consumers Energy Company (2) [ X ] A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)
6/15/2015

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility) (Continued)

Title of Schedule Reference Remarks
Page No.
(a) (b) (c)
BALANCE SHEET SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
(Liabilities and Other Credits) (Continued)

Other Paid-In Capital 253
Discount on Capital Stock 254
Capital Stock Expense 254
Long-Term Debt 256-257
Reconciliation of Reported Net Income with Taxable

Income for Federal iIncome Tax M 261A-B
Calculation of Federal Income Tax
Taxes Accrued, Prepaid and Charged During Year M 262-263
Distribution of Taxes Charged M 262-263
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes - Accelerated

Amortization Property M 272-273 NONE
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes - Other Property M 274-275
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes - Other M 276A-B
Other Regulatory Liabilities M 278

INCOME ACCOUNT SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

Electric Operating Revenues M 300-301
Customer Choice Electric Operating Revenues M 302-303
Sales of Electricity by Rate Schedules 304
Sales for Resale 310-311
Electric Operation and Maintenance Expenses 320-323
Number of Electric Department Employees 323
Purchased Power 326-327
Transmission of Electricity for Others 328-330 NONE
Transmission of Electricity by Others 332
Miscellaneous General Expenses - Electric M 335
Depreciation and Amortization of Electric Plant M 336-337
Particutars Concerning Certain Income Deduction and

Interest Charges Accounts 340

COMMON SECTION
Regulatory Commission Expenses 350-351
Research, Development and Demonstration Activities 352-353 NONE
Distribution of Salaries and Wages 354-355
Common Utility Plant and Expenses 356
ELECTRIC PLANT STATISTICAL DATA

Monthly Transmission System Peak Load M 400 NONE
Electric Energy Account 401
Monthly Peaks and Output 401
Steam-Electric Generating Plant Statistics (Large Plants) 402-403 RESUBMISSION
Hydroelectric Generating Plant Statistics (Large Plants) 406-407 RESUBMISSION
Pumped Storage Generating Plant Statistics (Large Plants) 408-409 RESUBMISSION
Generating Plant Statistics (Small Plants) 410-411 RESUBMISSION
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Name of Respondent This Report Is:
([ 1An Original

Consumers Energy Company (2) [ X ] A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

6/15/2015

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility) (Continued)

Title of Schedule Reference Remarks
Page No.
(a) (b) (©)
ELECTRIC PLANT STATISTICAL DATA
{Continued)
Transmission Line Statistics 422-423 NONE
Transmission Lines Added During Year 424-425 NONE
Substations 426-427
Electric Distribution Meters and Line Transformers 429
Environmental Protection Facilities 430
Environmental Protection Expenses 431
Footnote Data 450
Stockholders' Report -
MPSC SCHEDULES

Reconciliation of Deferred Income Tax Expense 117A-B
Operating Loss Carry Forward 117C
Plant Acquisition Adjustments and Accumulated Provision

for Amortization of Plant Acquisition Adjustments 215
Construction Work In Progress and Completed Construction

Not Classified - Electric 216
Accumulated Provision for Depreciation and

Amortization of Nonutility Property 221
Investments 222-223
Notes & Accounts Receivable Summary for Balance Sheet 226A
Accumulated Provision for Uncollectible Accounts - Credit 226A
Receivables From Associated Companies 226B
Production Fuel and Oil Stocks 227A-B
Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets 230A
Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges 231A-B NONE
Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant 235A-B NONE
Unamortized Loss and Gain on Reacquired Debt 237A-B
Securities Issued or Assumed and Securities Refunded or

Retired During the Year 255
Notes Payable 260A NONE
Payables to Associated Companies 260B
investment Tax Credits Generated and Utilized 264-265 NONE
Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities 268
Customer Advances for Construction 268
Other Deferred Credits 269
Deferred Gains from Disposition of Utility Plant 270A-B NONE
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes - Temporary 277 NONE
Gain or Loss on Disposition of Property 280A-B
Income from Utility Plant Leased to Others 281 NONE
Particulars Concerning Certain Other income Accounts 282
Electric Operation and Maintenance Expenses (Nonmajor) 320N-324N NOT APPLICABLE
Number of Electric Department Employees 234N NOT APPLICABLE
Customer Choice Sales of Electric by Rate Schedule 305
Sales to Railroads & Railways and Interdepartmental Sales 331A
Rent From Electric Property & Interdepartmental Rents 331A
Sales of Water and Water Power 331B
Misc. Service Revenues & Other Electric Revenues 331B
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Name of Respondent This Report Is:
1 An Original
Consumers Energy Company 22; % X]] A Resgubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)
6/15/2015

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

LIST OF SCHEDULES (Electric Utility) (Continued)

Title of Schedule Reference Remarks
Page No.
C)] (b) (€)
MPSC SCHEDULES (Continued)

Lease Rentals Charged 333A-D
Expenditures for Certain Civic, Political and Related Acfivities 341
Extraordinary ltems 342 NONE
Charges for Outside Professional and

Other Consultative Services 357
Summary of Costs Billed to Associated Companies 358-359
Summary of Costs Billed from Associated Companies 360-361
Monthly Transmission System Peak Load 400
Changes Made or Scheduled to be Made in

Generating Plant Capacities 412
Steam-Electric Generating Plants 413A-B
Hydroelectric Generating Plants 414-415
Pumped Storage Generating Plants 416-418
Internal Combustion Engine and Gas

Turbine Generating Plants 420-421
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report

(1) [ X1 An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
2)[ 1A Resubmission 4/17/2013 December 31, 2012

GENERAL INFORMATION

Consumers Energy Company

1. Provide name and title of officer having custody of the general corporate books of account and address of office
where the general corporate books are kept, and address of office where any other corporate books of account are
kept, if different from that where the general corporate books are kept.

Thomas J. Webb, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
One Energy Plaza

Jackson, Ml 49201

2. Provide the name of the State under the laws of which respondent is incorporated, and date of incorporation. If
incorporated under a special law, give reference to such law. If not incorporated, state that fact and give the type
of organization and date organized.

Incorporated in Michigan, January 22, 1968

3. If at any time during the year the property of respondent was held by a receiver or trustee, give (a) name of
receiver or trustee, (b) date such receiver or trustee took possession, (c) the authority by which the receivership or
trusteeship was created, and (d) date when possession by receiver or trustee ceased.

None

4. State the classes of utility and other services furnished by respondent during the year in each State in which
respondent operated.

Electric

Gas

All within the State of Michigan

5. Have you engaged as the principal accountant to audit your financial statements an accountant who is not the
principal accountant for your previous year's certified financial statements?

(1) [ 1 Yes...Enter date when such independent accountant was initially engaged:

) [x] No
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report

(1) [ X]An Original (Mo, Da, Y1) December 31, 2012

Consumers Energy Company (2)[ ] A Resubmission 4/17/2013

CONTROL OVER RESPONDENT & OTHER ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

1. If any corporation, business trust, or similar organization or combination of such organizations jointly held
control over the respondent at end of year, state name of controlling corporation or organization, manner in which
control was held, and extent of control. If control was in a holding company organization, show the chain of
ownership or control to the main parent company or organization. If control was held by a trustee(s), state name of
trustee(s), name of beneficiary or beneficiaries for whom trust was maintained, and purpose of the trust.

2. List any entities which respondent did not control either directly or indirectly and which did not control
respondent but which were associated companies at any time during the year.

CMS Energy Corporation owns 100% of Consumers Energy Company's outstanding common stock.
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report |Year of Report

(1) [ X1 An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
2)[ 1A Resubmission 411712013 | December 31,2012

CORPORATIONS CONTROLLED BY RESPONDENT

1. Report below the names of all corporations, business trusts, and similar organizations, controlled directly or indirectly
by respondent at any time during the year. If control ceased prior to end of year, give particulars (details) in a footnote.

Consumers Energy Company

2. If control was by other means than a direct holding of voting rights, state in a footnote the manner in which control was
held, naming any intermediaries involved.

3. If control was held jointly with one or more other interests, state the fact in a footnote and name the other interests.
DEFINITIONS

. See the Uniform of Accounts for a definition of control.
. Direct control is that which is exercised without interposition of an intermediary.
. Indirect control is that which is exercised by the interposition of an intermediary which exercises direct control.

WN =

4. Joint control is that in which neither interest can effectively control or direct action without the consent of the other, as
where the voting control is equally divided between two holders, or each party holds a veto power over the other. Joint
control may exist by mutual agreement or understanding between two or more parties who together have control within the
meaning of the definition of control in the Uniform System of Accounts, regardless of the relative voting rights of each

party.

Percent
Line Name of Company Controlied Kind of Business Voting Stock | Footnote Ref.
@ (b) (© (d)

1 |CMS Engineering Company Project engineering mgmt 100%
2 _|Consumers Campus Holdings, LLC Lessee in financing of CECo 100%
3 office building

4

5 [Consumers Funding LLC Assignee of property transfer 100%
6 and issuer of

7 securitization bonds

8

9 [Consumers Receivables Funding Il, LLC To buy certain account 100%
10 receivables from Consumers

11 and sell to a third party

12

13 |ES Services Company Energy related services 100%
14

15 |Consumers Energy Company Financing V Financing prefd securities 100%
16

17 _|Consumers Energy Company Financing VI Financing prefd securities 100%
18

19

20

21

22

23

24 [NOTE:

25 |Consumers Energy Company is a wholly-owned

26 |subsidiary of CMS Energy Corporation which has

27 |ownership of a number of other subsidiaries.

28

29

30
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Name of Respondent

Consumers Energy Company

This Report Is:

(1) [ X ] An Original
(2) [ 1A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

4/17/2013

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

compensation in column (d).

employees and salaries.

1. Report below the name, title and salary for the five executive officers
2. Report in column (b) salaries and wages accrued during the year including deferred compensation.

3. In column (c) report any other compensation provided, such as bonuses, car allowance, stock options and rights,
savings contribution, etc., and explain in a footnote what the amounts represent. Provide type code for other

4. If a change was made during the year in the incumbent of any position, show the name and total remuneration of the
previous incumbent and the date the change in incumbency occurred.

5. Upon request, the Company will provide the Commission with supplemental information on officers and other

Other Type of Other
Line Name and Title Base Wages | Compensation Compensation Total Compensation
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e)

1 |John G. Russell (1) 1,045,000 1,097,250 |A 5,105,756
President and Chief Executive Officer 9,000 (B
2,952,106 |C
2,400 |D

2 |Thomas J. Webb (1) 675,000 425,250 (A 2,001,177
Executive Vice President and 9,000 (B
Chief Financial Officer 874,227 |C
17,700 |D

3 |James E. Brunner (1) 433,000 272,790 (A 1,415,921
Senior Vice President 9,000 (B
692,983 (C
8,148 |D

4 |John M. Butler (1) 400,000 252,000 (A 1,268,214
Senior Vice President 24,000 |B
533,051 |C
59,163 [D

5 |[David G. Mengebier (1) 350,000 202,125 (A 912,464
Senior Vice President 9,000 (B
346,479 |C
4,860 |D

6 |Daniel J. Malone 375,000 236,250 (A 1,260,107
Senior Vice President 9,000 |B
586,379 |C
53,478 |D

Footnote Data

1 |The above listed officers are those officers that are included in CMS Energy Corporation's annual Proxy Statement
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
2 |(1) These employees are also employees of CMS Energy Corp. or its subsidiaries and accordingly the appropriate
portion of their compensation is charged to these companies.

Compensation Type Codes:

A = Executive Incentive Compensation

B = Incentive Plan (Matching Employer Contribution)

C = Stock Plans

D = Other Reimbursements
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) [ X] An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
Consumers Energy Company @) [ 1A Resubmission 4117/2013 December 31, 2012
DIRECTORS

1. Report below any information called for concerning each director of the respondent who held office at any time during the
year. Include in column (a), abbreviated titles of the directors who are officers of the respondent.

2. Designate members of the Executive Committee by a triple asterisk and the Chairman of the Executive Committee by a

double asterisk.

# of Directors
Meetings
Name and Title of Director Principal Business Address During Yr Fees During Yr (1)
(@) (b) (c) (d)

1 Merribel S. Ayres Lighthouse Consulting Group, LLC, Washington D.C. 8 85,000

2 Jon E. Barfield LJ Holdings Investment Company, Birmingham, Mi 8 90,000

3 Stephen E. Ewing Franklin, Michigan 8 85,000

4 Richard M. Gabrys Detroit, Michigan 8 90,000

5 David W. Joos** Okemos, Michigan 8 220,000

Chairman of Board

6 Philip R. Lochner, Jr. *** Greenwich, Connecticut 8 122,500

7 Michael T. Monahan*** Monahan Enterprises, LLC, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 8 100,000

8 John G. Russell One Energy Plaza, Jackson, Michigan 8 0
President and CEO

9 Kenneth L. Way*** Naples, Florida 8 92,500

10 John B. Yasinsky*** Bonita Springs, Florida 8 93,000

11 William D. Harvey (2) Madison, Wisconsin 3 35,417

Footnote Data

Represents fees paid for both CMS Energy Corporation and Consumers Energy Company Board and Committee meetings.
1 Fees are prorated to each company on the Massachusetts formula.

2 Mr. Harvey Joined the Board 08/01/2012
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Consumers Energy Company 2)[ 1A Resubmission 4/17/2013

SECURITY HOLDERS AND VOTING POWERS

1. (A) Give the names and addresses of the 10 security holders of the respondent who, at the date of the latest
closing of the stock book or compilation of list of stockholders of the respondent, prior to the end of the year, had
the highest voting powers in the respondent, and state the number of votes which each would have had the right to
cast on that date if a meeting were then in order. If any such holder held in trust, give in a footnote the known
particulars of the trust (whether voting trust, etc.), duration of trust, and principal holders of beneficiary interests in
the trust. If the stock book was not closed or a list of stockholders was not compiled within one year prior to the
end of the year, or if since the previous compilation of a list of stockholders, some other class of security has
become vested with voting rights, then show such 10 security holders as of the close of the year. Arrange the
names of the security holders in the order of voting power, commencing with the highest. Show in column (a) the
titles of officers and directors included in such list of 10 security holders.

1. (B) Give also the name and indicate the voting powers resulting from ownership of securities of the respondent
of each officer and director not included in the list of 10 largest security holders.

2. If any security other than stock carries voting rights, explain in a supplemental statement the circumstances
whereby such security became vested with voting rights and give other important particulars (details) concerning
the voting rights of such security. State whether voting rights are actual or contingent; if contingent, describe the
contingency.

3. If any class or issue of security has any special privileges in the election of directors, trustees or managers, or
in the determination of corporate action by any method, explain briefly in a footnote.

4. Furnish particulars (details) concerning any options, warrants, or rights outstanding at the end of the year for
others to purchase securities of the respondent or any securities or other assets owned by the respondent,
including prices, expiration dates, and other material information relating to exercise of the options, warrants, or
rights. Specify the amount of such securities or assets so entitled to be purchased by any officer, director,
associated company, or any of the ten largest security holders. This instruction is inapplicable to convertible
securities or to any securities substantially all of which are outstanding in the hands of the general public where the
options, warrants, or rights were issued on a prorata basis.

1. Give date of the latest closing of the stock book prior to end of year, and state the purpose of such closing:

Books not closed prior to end of the year.

2. State the total number of votes cast at the latest general proxy meeting prior to the end of year for election of
directors of the respondent and number of such votes cast by proxy:

Total: 84,108,789

By Proxy: 84,108,789

3. Give the date and place of such meeting:

May 18, 2012

Jackson, Michigan
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Consumers Energy Company @) 1A resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)
4/17/2013

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

SECURITY HOLDERS AND VOTING POWERS (Continued)

VOTING SECURITIES
Number of votes as of (date):
Name (Title) and Address of Security Holder Total Votes Common Stock Preferred Stock Other
Line (a) (b) (c) (d) (e)
4 | TOTAL votes all voting securities 84,550,388 84,108,789 441,599 0
5 |TOTAL number of security holders 1,379 1 1,378 0
6 |TOTAL votes of security holders listed below 84,486,804 84,108,789 378,015 0
7 |1.(A) Largest Security Holders
8 |CMS Energy Corporation 84,108,789 84,108,789
9 | One Energy Plaza
10 | Jackson, Mi 49201
11 |Cede & Co* 368,565 368,565
12 | Box 222, Bowling Green Station
13 | New York, NY 10274
14 |Charles M Pettee TOD Gail Densie Heldke 2,100 2,100
15 | 1027 Midway Rd
16 | Norhbrook, IL 60062-3935
17 |Alan L Johns 1,340 1,340
18 | 1254 Fountain Drive
19 | Columbus, OH 43221
20 |William R Houghton and Elizabeth P Houghton, Joint Tenants 1,310 1,310
21 | 310 N. Rolling Oaks
22 | San Antonio, TX 78253
23 |John Reynold Dahl 1,000 1,000
24 | 5200 N Flagler Drive #2405
25 | West Palm Beach, FL 33407
26 |Sarah E Hamilton 1,000 1,000
27 | 900 Chapman St
28 | lonia, M1 48846
29 |Albert E Maass & Marilyn J Maass Jt Ten 1,000 1,000
30 | 317 Oriole Ave SE
31 | Stuart, FL 34996
32 |Helen L Weber 900 900
33 {4919 Apache Ave
34 |Sierra Vista, AZ 85650
35 |Faith L Costello & JoMarie Costell, Joint Tenants 800 800
36 |12632 Topaz St
37 |Garden Grove, CA 92845
38 |Total Votes - 10 Largest Stockholders 84,486,804 84,108,789 378,015 0
39 |* Nominee--Represents various brokers and banks
40
41 |1.(B) Security Holdings of Officers and Directors
42 |D. W. Joos Chairman of the Board 0 0
43 |J. G. Russell Chief Executive Officer 0 0
44 M. J. Ayres Director 0 0
45 |J. E. Barfield Director 0 0
46 |R. M. Gabrys Director 0 0
47 |P. R. Lochner, Jr. Director 0 0
48 |M. T. Monahan Director 0 0
49 |K. L. Way Director 10 10
50 |J. B. Yasinksky Director 10 10
51 |S. E. Ewing Director 0 0
52 |Total Votes - Officers and Directors 20 0 20 0

RESPONSE TO INSTRUCTION # 2
No security, other than stock, carries voting rights.

RESPONSE TO INSTRUCTION #3

RESPONSE TO INSTRUCTION #4
Not applicable

No special voting privileges in the election of directors except that whenever four quarterly dividends payable on the
the Preferred Stock of any class shall be in default in whole or in part, the holders of the Preferred Stock shall have the
exclusive right to elect the majority of the Company's directors.
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Consumers Energy Company

IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE YEAR

Give particulars (details) concerning the matters indicated below. Make the statements explicit and precise, and number
them in accordance with the inquiries. Each inquiry should be answered. Enter "none", "not acceptable" or "NA" where
applicable. If information which answers an inquiry is given elsewhere in the report, make a reference to the schedule in
which it appears.

1. Changes in and important additions to franchise rights: Describe the actual consideration given therefore and state from
whom the franchise rights were acquired. If acquired without the payment of consideration, state that fact.

2. Acquisition of ownership in other companies by reorganization, merger, or consolidation with other companies: Give
names of companies involved, particulars concerning the transactions, name of the Commission authorizing the
transaction, and reference to Commission authorization.

3. Purchase or sale of an operating unit or system: Give a brief description of the property, and of the transactions relating
thereto, and reference to Commission authorization, if any was required. Give date journal entries called for by the Uniform
System of Accounts were submitted to the Commission.

4. Important leaseholds (other than leaseholds for natural gas lands) that have been acquired or given, assigned or
surrendered: Give effective dates, lengths of terms, names of parties, rents and other conditions. State name of
Commission authorizing lease and give reference to such authorization.

5. Important extension or reduction of transmission or distribution system: State territory added or relinquished and date
operations began or ceased and give reference to Commission authorization, if any was required. State also the
approximate number of customers added or lost and approximate annual revenues of each class of service. Each natural
gas company must also state major new continuing sources of gas made available to it from purchases, development,
purchase contract or otherwise, giving location and approximate total gas volumes available, period of contracts, and other
parties to any such arrangements etc.

6. Obligations incurred as a result of issuance of securities or assumption of liabilities or guarantees including issuance of
short-term debt and commercial paper having a maturity of one year or less. Give reference to FERC or State Commission
authorization, as appropriate, and the amount of obligation or guarantee.

7. Changes in articles of incorporation or amendments to charter: Explain the nature and purpose of such changes or
amendments.

8. State the estimated annual effect and nature of any important wage scale changes during the year.

9. State briefly the status of any material legal proceedings pending at the end of the year, and the results of any such
proceedings culimnated during the year.

10. Describe briefly and materially important transactions of the respondent not disclosed elsewhere in this report in which
an officer, director, security holder reported on page 106, voting trustee, associated company or known associate of any of
these persons was a party or in which any such person had a material interest.

11. Estimated increase or decrease in annual revenues due to important rate changes: State effective date and
approximate amount of increase or decrease for each revenue classification. State the number of customers affected.

12. If the important changes during the year relating to the respondent company appearing in the annual report to
stockholders are applicable in every respect and furnish the data required by instruction 1 to 11 above, such notes may be
attached to this page.
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Consumers Energy Company

IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

1. CHANGES IN AND IMPORTANT ADDITIONS TO FRANCHISE RIGHTS:
None

2. ACQUISITION OF OWNERSHIP IN OTHER COMPANIES BY REORGANIZATION, MERGER OR CONSOLIDATION
WITH OTHER COMPANIES:

None
3. PURCHASE OR SALE OF AN OPERATING UNIT OR SYSTEM:

None.

4. IMPORTANT LEASEHOLDS (OTHER THAN LEASEHOLDS FROM NATURAL GAS LANDS) THAT HAVE BEEN
ACQUIRED OR GIVEN, ASSIGNED OR SURRENDERED:

In May 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with Midwest Fiber Networks, LLC, to lease the Dark Fiber East Ring in
the State of Michigan, for a total of $5,643,628. The effective date of the lease is November 2012, and the lease will be
amortized over 20 years.

RBS Asset Finance, Inc. and Consumers Energy entered into an agreement dated July 26, 2012 for the lease of trucks and
trailers. Delivery occurred during the fourth quarter of 2012 with an estimated total acquisition cost of $3.8 million. The lease
term is for 10 years with a 10% residual value.

On September 28, 2012, Consumers Energy surrendered its capital lease agreement with Coal Supply Corporation I, which
was expired December 30, 2012. The disposition was an early termination by third-party sale of equipment to Rail Connection,
Inc. Consumers Energy paid the remaining rent of $421, 338.93 to Key Equipment Finance, owner trustee, and was released
of all liabilities under the lease agreement.

5. IMPORTANT EXTENSIONS OR REDUCTIONS OF TRANSMISSION OF DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM:
None

6. OBLIGATIONS INCURRED AS A RESULT OF ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OR ASSUMPTION OF LIABILITIES OR
GUARANTEES INCLUDING ISSUANCE OF SHORT-TERM DEBT AND COMMERCIAL PAPER HAVING A MATURITY OF
ONE YEAR OR LESS:

Consumers’ authorization to issue short-term securities (used herein as that term is defined by FERC) through September 30,
2012 was granted by FERC on June 7, 2012 in Docket No. ES12-36-000, and its authorization to issue long-term securities
was granted on June 7, 2012 in Docket No. ES12-35-000. Orders in those dockets: (a) authorized Consumers to have
outstanding at any one time up to $500 million of secured and unsecured short-term debt securities and up to $500 million in
collateral or credit support, and (b) authorized Consumers to issue up to $1.9 billion of long-term securities, up to $755 million
of indebtedness outstanding at any one time under long-term revolving credit instruments and letters of credit, and up to $1
billion of first mortgage bonds or other securities issued as collateral for other long-term securities. Both of these
authorizations went into effect July 1, 2012 for the two-year period ending June 30, 2014. The interest rate for the short-term
debt securities is the 180-day LIBOR at the time of issuance plus up to 200 basis points. The interest rate on the $1.9 billion
in new long-term securities will not exceed 10 percent and the interest rate for $650 of the $755 million under long-term
revolving credit instruments will not exceed the 180-day LIBOR plus up to 200 basis points. The interest rate on the
remaining $105 million on long-term indebtedness will not exceed the Prime Rate as quoted by JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A.
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IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

On May 8, 2012 Consumers Energy issued $375 million First Mortgage Bonds due May, 2022 at a rate of 2.85%.

In July 2012, Consumers borrowed $350 million under a $375 million short-term credit agreement. Outstanding borrowings
bear interest at an annual interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.8%.

In August 2012, Consumers utilized the Michigan Strategic Fund for the issuance of $68 million and $35 million of tax-exempt
Michigan Strategic Fund revenue bonds. The bonds, which are backed by letters of credit and collateralized by Consumers’
FMBs, are subject to optional tender by the holders that would result in remarketing. Consumers used the proceeds to redeem
$103 million of tax-exempt bonds in August 2012.

In December 2012, under a bond purchase agreement executed in July 2012, Consumers received the proceeds of a private
placement of $52 million of 3.19% FMBs due 2024, $35 million of 3.39% FMBs due 2027 and $263 million of 4.31% FMBs
due 2042. Consumers used the proceeds to repay $350 million of outstanding short-term debt.

Consumers Energy secures its First Mortgage Bonds by a mortgage and lien on substantially all of its property. Consumers’
ability to issue and sell securities is restricted by certain provisions in its First Mortgage Bond Indenture, its Articles of
Incorporation and the need for regulatory approvals to meet appropriate federal law.

7. CHANGES IN ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OR AMENDMENTS TO CHARTER:

None

8. STATE THE ESTIMATED ANNUAL EFFECT AND NATURE OF ANY IMPORTANT WAGE SCALE CHANGES DURING
THE YEAR:

Consumers’ union wage scale adjustments for 2012 were as follows: The annual increase in wages as a result of COLA
increases was $1,380,000 and the annual increase in wages as a result of the general increase was $2,620,000.

9. STATE BRIEFLY THE STATUS OF ANY MATERIALLY IMPORTANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS PENDING AT THE END
OF THE YEAR, AND THE RESULTS OF ANY SUCH PROCEEDINGS CULMINATED DURING THE YEAR:

Consumers and some of its subsidiaries and affiliates are parties to certain routine lawsuits and administrative proceedings
incidental to their businesses involving, for example, claims for personal injury and property damage, contractual matters,
various taxes, and rates and licensing. Reference is made to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included
herein, for additional information regarding various pending administrative and judicial proceedings involving regulatory,
operating and environmental matters.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

10. DESCRIBE BRIEFLY ANY MATERIALLY IMPORTANT TRANSACTIONS OF THE RESPONDENT NOT DISCLOSED
ELSEWHERE IN THIS REPORT IN WHICH AN OFFICE, DIRECTOR, SECURITY HOLDER REPORTED ON PAGE 106,
VOTING TRUSTEE, ASSOCIATED COMPANY OR KNOWN ASSOCIATE OF ANY OF THESE PERSONS WAS A PARTY
OR IN WHICH ANY SUCH PERSON HAD A MATERIAL INTEREST:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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IMPORTANT CHANGES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

Residential
General Service
Transport

Total

One important rate change was implemented in 2012.

Gas Rate Case U16855 - Order date June 7, 2012
Approved Annual Rate Increase:

$ 12 million
$ 3 million

$ 1 million
$ 16 million

Number of Customers Affected: Approximately 1.7 million

11. ESTIMATED INCREASE OR DECREASE IN ANNUAL REVENUES DUE TO IMPORTANT RATE CHANGES: STATE
EFFECTIVE DATE AND APPROXIMATE AMOUNT OF INCREASE OR DECREASE FOR EACH REVENUE
CLASSIFICATION. STATE THE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS AFFECTED.
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Consumers Energy Company (2)[ 1A Resubmission 4/17/2013 December 31, 2012
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS)
Ref. Page | Balance at Beginning
Title of Account No. of Year Balance at End of Year

Line (a) b C d
1 UTILITY PLANT
2 |Utility Plant (101-106, 114) 200-201 14,528,206,826 15,343,706,804
3 |Construction Work in Progress (107) 200-201 780,708,040 1,075,654,999
4 |TOTAL Utility Plant (Enter total of lines 2 and 3) 15,308,914,866 16,419,361,803
5 |(Less) Accum.Prov for Depr.Amort.Depl (108,110,111,115) 200-201 6,073,452,940 6,400,359,261
6 |Net Utility Plant (Enter total of line 4 less 5) 9,235,461,926 10,019,002,542
7  |Nuclear Fuel in Process of Ref., Conv., Enrich., and Fab (120.1) 0 0
8 |Nuclear Fuel Materials & Assemblies - Stock Account (120.2) 0 0
9 |Nuclear Fuel Assemblies in Reactor (120.3) 0 0
10 [Spent Nuclear Fuel (120.4) 0 0
11 |Nuclear Fuel under Capital Leases (120.6) 0 0
12 |(Less) Acc. Prov. of Amort. of Nuclear Fuel Assemblies (120.5) 202-203 0 0
13 [Net Nuclear Fuel (Enter total of line 7-11 less 12) 0 0
14 |Net Utility Plant (Enter total of lines 6 and 13) 9,235,461,926 10,019,002,542
15 |Utility Plant Adjustments (116) 122
16 |Gas Stored Underground-Noncurrent (117) -
17 OTHER PROPERTY anD iNveEsTveENTs [
18 |Nonutility Property (121) 221 15,379,976 15,363,040
19 |(Less) Accum.Prov. for Depr. and Amort. (122) 221 1,622,545 1,542,450
20 |Investments in Associated Companies (123) 222-223 34,624,642 31,606,378
21 |Investments in Subsidiary Companies (123.1) 224-225 710,941,339 790,028,639
22 |(For Cost of Account 123.1, See Footnote Page 224, line 42)
23 |Noncurrent Portion of Allowances 228-229 4,137,639 7,334,873
24 |Other Investments (124) 222-223 4,567,199 5,072,776
25 |Sinking Funds (125) 0 0
26 |Depreciation Fund (126) 0 0
27 |Amortization Fund - Federal (127) 0 0
28 |Other Special Funds (128) 76,315,546 87,648,961
29 |Special Funds (Non-Major Only) (129) 0 0
30 |Long-Term Portion of Derivative Assets (175) 0 0
31 |Long-Term Portion of Derivative Assets - Hedges (176) 0 0
32 TOTAL Other Property and Investments (Total of lines 18 thru 21,

23 thru 31) 844,443,796 935,512,217

33 CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS
34 |Cash and Working Funds (Non-Major Only) (130) 0 0
35 |Cash (131) -—- 20,129,074 4,663,341
36 |Special Deposits (132-134) - 13,031,381 11,849,800
37 |Working Fund (135) - 7,353 8,097
38 |Temporary Cash Investments (136) 222-223 56,200,000 0
39 [Notes Receivable (141) 226A 22,957,765 16,642,542
40 [Customer Accounts Receivable (142) 226A 115,597,364 38,654,940
41 |Other Accounts Receivable (143) 226A 65,048,026 47,604,125
42 |(Less) Accum.Prov. for Uncoll. Acct.- Credit (144) 226A 32,951,147 30,409,084
43 |Notes Receivable from Assoc. Companies (145) 226B 0 0
44 |Accounts Receivable from Assoc. Companies (146) 226B 10,055,623 1,631,260
45 |Fuel Stock (151) 227 164,100,747 166,928,884
46 |Fuel Stock Expenses Undistributed (152) 227 0 0
47 |Residuals (Elec) and Extracted Products (153) 227 0 0
48 |Plant Materials and Operating Supplies (154) 227 88,147,158 92,295,716
49 |Merchandise (155) 227 0 0
50 |Other Materials and Supplies (156) 227 0 0
51 |Nuclear Materials Held for Sale (157) 202-203, 207 0 0
52 |Allowances (158.1 and 158.2) 228-229 9,191,878 14,082,142
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COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS) (Continued)

Ref. Page |Balance at Beginning| Balance at End of
Title of Account No. of Year Year

Line (@ (b) (c) (d)
53 |(Less) Noncurrent Portion of Allowances - 4,137,639 7,334,873
54 |Stores Expense Undistributed (163) 227 0 0
55 |Gas Stored Underground-Current (164.1) 220 929,325,964 815,770,641

Liquefied Natural Gas Stored and Held for Processing
56 |(164.2-164.3) 220 0 0
57 |Prepayments (165) 230 28,591,603 26,386,131
58 |Advances for Gas (166-167) -—
59 [Interest and Dividends Receivable (171) -—- 15,417 681
60 |Rents Receivable (172) - 1,541,632 229,770
61 |Accrued Utility Revenues (173) - 0 0
62 |Misc Current and Accrued Assets (174) 230A 288,241,453 321,556,479
63 |Derivative Instrument Assets (175) 1,911,461 2,096,434
64 |(Less) LT Portion of Derivative Inst. Assets (175) 0 0
65 |Derivative Instrument Assets - Hedges (176) 0 0
66 |(Less) LT Portion of Derivative Inst. Assets - Hedges (176) 0 0
67 |TOTAL Current and Accrued Assets (Enter total of lines 34

thru 66) 1,777,005,113 1,522,657,026
68 DEFERRED DEBITS
69 |Unamortized Debt Expenses (181) - 18,074,277 18,748,498
70 |Extraordinary Property Losses (182.1) 230 0 0
71 |Unrecovered Plant & Regulatory Study Costs (182.2) 230 0 0
72 |Other Regulatory Assets (182.3) 232 2,709,528,614 2,597,158,816
73 |Prelim. Survey & Invest. Charges (Elec) (183) 231 0 0
74 |Prelim. Survey & Invest. Charges (Gas) (183.1) - 0 0
75 |Other Prelim. Survey & Investigation Charges (183.2) 0 0
76 |Clearing Accounts (184) - 2,541 (1,888)
77 |Temporary Facilities (185) - 0 0
78 [Miscellaneous Deferred Debits (186) 233 4,233,832 5,145,597
79 |Def. Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant (187) 235 0 0
80 |Research, Devel. and Demonstration Expend (188) 352-353 0 0
81 |Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt (189) 237 44,137,224 55,202,983
82 |Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes (190) 234 1,378,083,483 1,479,973,218
83 |Unrecovered Purchased Gas Costs (191) -—-
84 |TOTAL Deferred Debits (Enter total of lines 69 thru 83) 4,154,059,971 4,156,227,224

TOTAL Assets and Other Debits (Enter total of lines 14 thru
85 |16, 32, 67, and 84) 16,010,970,806 16,633,399,009
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COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS)
Ref. Page | Balance at Beginning| Balance at End of
Title of Account No. of Year Year
Line (@ b C d
1 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL
2 |Common Stock Issued (201) 250-251 841,087,890 841,087,890
3 |Preferred Stock Issued (204) 250-251 44,159,900 44,159,900
4 |Capital Stock Subscribed (202, 205) 252 0 0
5 |Stock Liability for Conversion (203, 206) 252 0 0
6 |Premium on Capital Stock (207) 252 386,028,613 386,028,613
7 |Other Paid-In Capital (208-211) 253 2,594,013,613 2,744,013,613
8 |Instaliments Received on Capital Stock (212) 252 0 0
9 |(Less) Discount on Capital Stock (213) 254 0 0
10 |(Less) Capital Stock Expense (214) 254 23,718,573 23,718,573
11 |Retained Earnings (215, 215.1, 216) 118-119 554,273,903 598,522,654
12 |Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings (216.1) 118-119 (390,730) (277,930)
13 |(Less) Reacquired Capital Stock (217) 250-251 0 0
14 |Noncorporate Proprietorship (Non-major only) (218) 0 0
15 |Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (219) 122(a)(b) (1,740,260) (8,098,089)
16 TOTAL Proprietary Capital (Enter total of lines 2 thru 15) 4,393,714,356 4,581,718,078
17 LONG-TERM DEBT
18 |Bonds (221) 256-257 3,875,000,000 3,925,000,000
19 [(Less) Reacquired Bonds (222) 256-257 0 0
20 |Advances from Associated Companies (223) 256-257 135,531,416 78,389,028
21 |Other Long-Term Debt (224) 256-257 282,700,000 282,700,000
22 |Unamortized Premium on Long-Term Debt (225) - 1,004,828 844,056
(Less) Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt -Debit
23 |(226) -—- 4,407,281 3,513,224
24 |TOTAL Long-Term Debt (Enter total lines 18 thru 23) 4,289,828,963 4,283,419,860
25 OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES P e T
26 |Obligations Under Capital Leases-Noncurrent (227) 167,101,394 153,104,264
27 |Accumulated Prov. for Property Insurance (228.1) 0 0
28 |Accumulated Prov. for Injuries and Damage (228.2) 50,118,663 44,447 626
29 |Accumulated Prov. for Pensions and Benefits (228.3) 1,227,884,214 1,388,706,154
30 [Accumulated Misc. Operating Provisions (228.4) 0 0
31 |Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds (229) 28,888,830 6,984,320
32 |Long-Term Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities 0 0
33 |LT Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges 0 0
34 |Asset Retirement Obligations (230) 253,611,847 311,603,889
35 TOTAL Other Noncurrrent Liabilities (Enter total of lines 26
thru 34) 1,727,604,948 1,904,846,253
36 CURRENT AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
37 [Notes Payable (231) 0 0
38 |Accounts Payable (232) 386,613,199 411,941,771
39 |Notes Payable to Associated Companies (233) 260B 27,395,393 152,000,000
40 |Accounts Payable to Associated Companies (234) 260B 10,968,633 11,828,652
41 |[Customer Deposits (235) 37,003,473 34,967,837
42 [Taxes Accrued (236) 262-263 281,095,868 383,802,878
43 |Interest Accrued (237) 72,825,139 64,083,070
44 |Dividends Declared (238) 490,981 490,981
45 |Matured Long-Term Debt (239) 0 0
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COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS) (Continued)

Ref. Page |Balance at Beginning| Balance at End of
Title of Account No. of Year Year
Line @) (b) ) (d)
46 |Matured Interest (240)
47 |Tax Collections Payable (241) (2,236,823) 1,194,128
48 |Misc. Current and Accrued Liabilities (242) 142,730,747 130,154,581
49 |Obligations Under Capital Leases -Current (243) 24,082,800 21,491,416
50 [Derivative Instrument Liabilities (244)
51 |(Less) LT Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities
52 |Derivative Instrument Liabilities - Hedges (245)
(Less) LT Portion of Derivative Instrument Liabilities -
53 |Hedges
54 |Federal Income Taxes Accrued for Prior Years (246)
55 |State and Local Taxes Accrued for Prior Years - (246.1)
Federal Income Taxes Accrued for Prior Years -
56 |Adjustments (247) 3,066,956 977,150
State and Local Taxes Accrued for Prior Years -
57 |Adjustments (247.1) 3,424,298 2,943,246
TOTAL Current and Accrued Liabilities (Enter total of lines
58 |37 thru 57) 987,460,664 1,215,875,710
59 DEFERRED CREDITS
60 |Customer Advances for Construction (252) 34,755,850 39,215,437
61 |Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credits (255) 266-267 45,680,278 42,680,808
62 |Deferred Gains from Disposition of Utility Plt. (256) 270
63 |Other Deferred Credits (253) 269 283,381,925 195,765,443
64 |Other Regulatory Liabilities (254) 278 976,808,581 1,013,620,259
65 |Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt (257) 237
66 |Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Accel. Amort. (281)
67 |Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Other Property (282) 2,070,587,259 2,282,184,405
68 [Accum. Deferred Income Taxes-Other (283) 272-277 1,201,147,982 1,074,072,756
69 |TOTAL Deferred Credits (Enter total of lines 60 thru 68) 4,612,361,875 4,647,539,108
TOTAL Liabilities and Other Credits (Enter total of lines
70 |16, 24, 35, 58 and 69) 16,010,970,806 16,633,399,009
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Name of Respondent

Consumers Energy Company

This Report Is:

(1) [ X1 An Original
(2)[ ]A Resubmission

Date of Report Year of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)
4/17/2013 December 31, 2012

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR

1. Report amounts for accounts 412 and 413, Revenue and Expenses for Utility Plant Leased to Others, in another utility
column (I,k,m,0) in a similar manner to a utility department. Spread the amount(s) over lines 02 thru 24 as appropriate.
Include these amounts in columns (c) and (d) totals.

2. Report amounts in account 414, Other Utility Operating Income, in the same manner as accounts 412 and 413 above.

3. Report data for lines 7, 9, and 10 for Natural Gas companies using accounts 404.1, 404.2, 404.3, 407.1, and 407.2
4. Use pages 122-123 for important notes regarding the statement of income or any account thereof.

5. Give concise explanations concerning unsettled rate proceedings where a contingency exists such that refunds of a
material amount may need to be made to the utility's customers or which may result in a material refund to the utility with
respect to power or gas purchases. State for each year affected the gross revenues or costs to which the contingency
relates and the tax effects together with an explanation of the major factors which affect the rights of the utility to....

TOTAL
Title of Account Ref'.\ll;’age Current Year Previous Year
Line (a) (b) (d)

1 UTILITY OPERATING INCOME
2 |Operating Revenues (400) 300-301
3 |Operating Expenses
4 Operation Expenses (401) 320-323 3,952,482,453 4,256,143,406
5 Maintenance Expenses (402) 320-323 242 325,520 256,242,030
6 Depreciation Expenses (403) 336-337 452,755,681 415,334,298
7 Depreciation Expenses for Asset Retirement Costs (403.1) 0 0
8 Amortization and Depl. of Utility Plant (404-405) 336-337 31,007,036 24,551,238
9 Amortization of Utility Plant Acg. Adj (406) 336-337 5,344,486 5,344,487
10 Amort. Of Property Losses, Unrecovered Plant and

Regulatory Study Costs (407) 0 0
11 Amort. Of Conversion Expenses (407) 0 0
12 Regulatory Debits (407.3) 90,438,827 82,969,949
13 (Less) Regulatory Credits (407.4) 0 0
14 Taxes Other Than Income Taxes (408.1) 262-263 222,692,347 205,629,805
15 Income Taxes-Federal (409.1) 262-263 118,350,216 68,670,283
16 -Other (409.1) 262-263 36,278,788 31,050,205
17 Provision for Deferred Income Taxes (410.1) 234,272-276 1,129,910,927 1,519,209,064
18 (Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes-Cr. (411.1) | 234,272-276 982,621,971 1.349,139,030
19 Investment Tax Credit Adj.- Net (411.4) 266-267 (2,999,470) (3,521,239)
20 (Less) Gains from Disp. of Utility Plant (411.6) 270A-B
21 Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant (411.7) 235A-B
22 (Less) Gains from Disposition of Allowances (411.8) 194,436 4,015
23 Losses from Disposition of Allowances (411.9)
24 Accretion Expense (411.10)
25 TOTAL Utility Operating Expenses (Enter Total of lines 4

thru 24) 5,295,770,404 5,512,480,481

26 Net Utility Operating Income ( Enter Total of line 2 less 25)

( Carry forward to page 117, line 27) 692,959,679 717,366,663
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report

(1) [ X ] An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)

(2) [ ] A Resubmission 4/17/2013 December 31, 2012
STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

...retain such revenues or recover amounts paid with respect to power and gas purchases.

6. Give concise explanations concerning significant amounts of any refunds made or received during the year resulting from
settlement of any rate proceeding affecting revenues received or costs incurred for power or gas purchases, and a summary
of the adjustments made to balance sheet, income, and expense accounts.

7. If any notes appearing in the report to stockholders are applicable to this Statement of Income, such notes may be
included on pages 122-123.

8. Enter on pages 122-123 a concise explanation of only those changes in accounting methods made during the year which
had an effect on net income, including the basis of allocations and apportionments from those used in the proceeding year.
Also give the approximate dollar effect of such changes.

9. Explain in a footnote if the previous year's figures are different from that reported in prior years.

10. If the columns are insufficient for reporting additional utility departments, supply the appropriate account titles, lines 2 to
23, and report the information in the blank space on pages 122-123 or in a footnote.

Consumers Energy Company

ELECTRIC UTILITY GAS UTILITY OTHER UTILITY
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
(e) ) @ (h) 0] () Line
1
| 4014201299 | 3897742795 ] 197458784| 2332104349 | [»
3
2,467,417 671 2,429,053,271 1,485,064,782 1,827,090,135 4
198,314,219 215,089,467 44,011,301 41,152,563 5
329,451,490 294,593,024 123,304,191 120,741,274 6
0 0 0 0 7
20,493,532 15,823,415 10,513,504 8,727,823 8
5,338,328 5,338,329 6,158 6,158 9
0 0 0 0 10
0 0 0 0 11
90,438,827 82,969,949 0 0 12
0 0 0 0 13
155,235,952 145,236,604 67,456,395 60,393,201 14
83,803,981 71,258,975 34,546,235 (2,588,692) 15
28,082,154 23,993,724 8,196,634 7,056,481 16
661,208,058 893,151,230 468,702,869 626,057,834 17
542,184,283 794,580,134 440,437,688 554,558,896 18
(2,374,919) (2,881,330) (624,551) (639,909) 19
0 0 0 0 20
0 0 0 0 21
194,436 4,015 0 0 22
0 0 0 0 23
0 0 0 0 24
3,495,030,574 3,379,042,509 1,800,739,830 2,133,437,972 0 0| 25
519,170,725 518,700,286 173,788,954 198,666,377 0 0] 26
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Name of Respondent

Consumers Energy Company

This Report Is:
(1) [ X ] An Original
(2)[ 1A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

4/17/2013

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
(Ref) Total
Account Page No. Current Year Previous Year
Line (@ (b) (© (d)
27 Net Utility Operating Income (Carried forward from page 114) 692,959,679 717,366,663
28 OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS
29 |Other Income
30 |Nonutility Operating Income
31 |Revenues From Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work (415) 282 9,500,444 9,168,677
32 |(Less) Costs and Exp. Of Merchandising, Job. And Contract Work (416) 282 7,989,726 7,743,684
33 |Revenues From Nonutility Operations ( 417) 282 1,377,009 1,625,241
34 |(Less) Expenses of Nonutility Operations (417.1) 282 1,169,582 1,489,578
35 |Nonoperating Rental Income (418) 282 618,895 618,895
36 |Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies (418.1) 119,282 112,800 (65,301)
37 |Interest and Dividend Income (419) 282 5,013,797 5,506,524
38 |Aliowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (419.1) 282 7,824,144 6,405,674
39 [Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income (421) 282 23,427,318 27,227,286
40 |Gain on Disposition of Property (421.1) 280 49,282 142,932
41 |TOTAL Other Income (enter Total of lines 31 thru 40) 38,764,381 41,396,666
42 |Other Income Deductions
43 |Loss on Disposition of Property (421.2) 280 59,964 108,684
44 |Miscellaneous Amortization (425) 340 11,140 0
45 Donations (426.1) 340 11,163,978 10,478,761
46 Life Insurance (426.2) 340 0 0
47 Penalties (426.3) 340 19,130 275,308
48 Exp. For Certain Civic, Political & Related Activities (426.4) 340 16,022,228 3,102,122
49 Other Deductions (426.5) 340 32,420,270 21,031,183
50 |TOTAL Other Income Deductions (Total of lines 43 thru 49) 59,696,710 34,996,058
51 |Taxes Applicable to Other Income and Deductions
52 |Taxes Other Than Income Taxes (408.2) 262-263 297,940 295,983
53 |Income Taxes - Federal (409.2) 262-263 2,963,518 4,356,066
54 |Income Taxes - Other (409.2) 262-263 146,598 730,310
55 |Provision for Deferred Income Taxes (410.2) 234,272-276 5,455,331 5,442,837
56 |(Less) Provision for Deferred Income Taxes - Cr. (411.2) 234,272-276 11,283,247 9,282,175
57 |Investment Tax Credit Adjustment - Net (411.5) 264-265 0 0
58 |[(Less) Investment Tax Credits (420) 264-265 0 0
59 | TOTAL Taxes on Other Income and Deductions (total of 52 thru 58) (2,419,860) 1,543,021
60 |Net Other Income and Deductions (total of lines 41, 50 & 59) (18,512,469) 4,857,587
61 INTEREST CHARGES
62 |Interest on Long-Term Debt (427) 257 212,988,267 229,864,471
63 |Amort. Of Debt Disc. And Expense (428) 256-257 4,140,964 4,414,349
64 |Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt (428.1) 7,529,116 8,420,345
65 |(Less) Amort. Of Premium on Debt-Credit (429) 256-257 160,772 160,772
66 |(Less) Amort. of Gain on Reacquired Debt-Credit (429.1) 0 0
67 |Interest on Debt to Associated Companies (430) 257-340 8,527,003 10,586,986
68 |Other Interest Expense (431) 340 6,337,421 6,067,640
69 |(Less) Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction-Cr. (432) 4,210,272 3,669,972
70 [Net Interest Charges (total of lines 62 thru 69) 235,151,727 255,523,047
71 |income Before Extraordinary ltems (total lines 27,60,70) 439,295,483 466,701,203
72 EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
73 |Extraordinary Income (434) 342 0 0
74 |(Less) Extraordinary Deductions (435) 342 0 0
75 |Net Extraordinary Items (total line 73 less line 74) 0 0
76 |Income Taxes-Federal and Other (409.3) 262-263 0 0
77 |Extraordinary ltems After Taxes (Enter Total of lines 75 less line 76) 0 0
78 [Net Income (Enter Total of lines 71 and 77) 439,295,483 466,701,203
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Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

4/17/2013

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

Name of Respondent This Report Is:
(1) [ X1 An Original

Consumers Energy Company (2)[ 1A Resubmission

RECONCILIATION OF DEFERRED INCOME TAX EXPENSE

1. Report on this page the charges to accounts 410, 411  In the event the deferred income tax expenses reported on

and 420 reported in the contra accounts 190, 281, 282,  pages 114-117 do not directly reconcile with the amounts
283 and 284.

2. The charges to the subaccounts of 410 and 411 found
on pages 114-117 should agree with the subaccount page.
totals reported on these pages.

found on these pages, then provide the additional
information requested in instruction #3, on a separate

Line No. Electric Utility Gas Utility
1 Debits to Account 410 from:
2 Account 190 307,470,036 199,819,158
3 Account 281 0 0
4 Account 282 188,341,271 165,235,211
5 Account 283 165,396,751 103,648,500
6 Account 284 0 0
7 Reconciling Adjustments
8  TOTAL Account 410.1 (on pages 114-115 line 17) 661,208,058 468,702,869
9 TOTAL Account 410.2 (on page 117 line 55)
10 Credits to Account 411 from:
11 Account 190 272,863,485 168,187,952
12 Account 281 0 0
13 Account 282 17,291,663 123,773,474
14 Account 283 252,029,135 148,476,262
15  Account 284 0 0
16 Reconciling Adjustments
17 _TOTAL Account 411.1 (.on page 114-115 line 18) 542,184,283 440,437,688
18 TOTAL Account 411.2 (on page 117 line 56)
19 Net ITC Adjustment:
20  ITC Utilized for the Year DR 0 0
21 ITC Amortized for the Year CR (2,374,919) (624,551)
22  ITC Adjustments:
23 Adjust last year's estimate to actual per filed return
24 Other (specify)
25 Net Reconciling Adjustments Account 411.4* (2,374,919) (624,551)
26 Net Reconciling Adjustments Account 411.5™*
27  Net Reconciling Adjustments Account 420***

* on pages 114-15 line 19 ** on page 117 line 57
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report
1) [ X1 An Original Mo, Da, Yr
Consumers Energy Company 52; { ]]A Resu?)mission ( 4/1 7/2)013 December 31, 2012

RECONCILIATION OF DEFERRED INCOME TAX EXPENSE

3. (a) Provide a detailed reconciliation of the
applicable deferred income tax expense
subaccount(s) reported on pages 114-117 with the
amount reported on these pages. (b) Identify all
contra accounts (other than accounts 190 and 281-

(c) Identify the company's regulatory authority to utilize contra

accounts other than accounts 190 or 281-284 for the recording

of deferred income tax expense(s).

284).
Other Utility Total Utility Other Income Total Company Line No.
1
507,289,194 5,359,168 512,648,362 2
0 0 0 3
353,576,482 8,556 353,585,038 4
269,045,251 87,607 269,132,858 5
0 0 0 6
7
1,129,910,927 8
5,455,331 9
10
441,051,437 10,295,313 451,346,750 11
0 0 0] 12
141,065,137 25,514 141,090,651 13
400,505,397 962,420 401,467,817 14
0 0 0] 15
16
982,621,971 17
11,283,247 18
19
0 0] 20
(2,999,470) (2,999,470)] 21
22
23
24
(2,999,470) 0 25
0 26
0 27
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Name of Respondent

Consumers Energy Company

This Report Is:
(1) [ X1 An Original
(2) [ 1A Resubmission

Date of Report

(Mo, Da, Y1)

4/17/2013

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

OPERATING LOSS CARRYFORWARD

Fill in below when the company sustains an operating loss, loss carryback or carryforward whenever or
wherever applicable.

Line
No.

Year

(@)

Operating Loss

(b)

Loss Carryforward (F)

Loss Utilized

or Carryback (B)
(c)

Amount

(d)

Year

(e)

Balance
Remaining

V)

2005

2006

2008

2011

Total

177,708,935

24,449
44,401,711

36,188

Tax Sharing
B
B
F
Tax Sharing
F
Tax Sharing
F
Tax Sharing
F

21,626,422
6,440,086

2010
2011

149,642,427
24,449
44,401,711

36,188

194,104,775
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report

(1) [ X1 An Original (Mo, Da, YT)
Consumers Energy Company @)[ ]A Resubmission 4/17/2013 December 31, 2012

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS FOR THE YEAR

1. Report all changes in appropriated retained earnings, unappropriated retained earnings, and unappropriated undistributed subsidiary
earnings for the year.

2. Each credit and debit during the year should be identified as to the retained earnings account in which recorded (Accounts 433, 436-439
inclusive). Show the contra primary account affected in column (b).

3. State the purpose and amount for each reservation or appropriation of retained earnings.

4. List first account 439 (Adjustments to Retained Earnings), reflecting adjustments to the opening balance of retained earnings. Follow by
credit, then debit, items in that order.

5. Show dividends for each class and series of capital stock.
6. Show separately the state and federal income tax effect of items shown in account 439 (Adjustments to Retained Earnings)

7. Explain in a footnote the basis for determining the amount reserved or appropriated. If such reservation or appropriation is to be recurrent,
state the number and annual amounts to be reserved or appropriated as well as the totals eventually to be accumulated.

8. If any notes appearing in the report to stockholders are applicable to this statement, include them on pages 122-123.

Contra

Primary

Account

Line Item Affected Amount
No. (a) (b) (c)
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 216)

1
2 |Balance-Beginning of Year 497,538,529
3
4 Changes (Identify by prescribed retained earnings accounts):
5
6 |Adjustments to Retained Earnings (Account 439) 0
7
8
9
10 |Balance Transferred from Income (Account 433 Less Account 418.1) 439,182,683
11
12
13
14 |Appropriations of Retained Earnings (Account 436)
15
16 Excess Hydro Earnings (1,564,442)
17
18 TOTAL Appropriations of Retained Earnings (Account 436) (1,564,442)
19
20
21 |Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock (Account 437)
22
23 $4.50 preferred stock (1,679,176)
24 $4.16 preferred stock (284,756)
25
26 TOTAL Dividends Declared-Preferred Stock (Account 437) (1,963,932)
27
28
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Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report Year of Report
(1) [ X1 An Original (Mo, Da, Yr)
Consumers Energy Company @) [ 1A Resubmission 4/17/2013 December 31, 2012
STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
Contra Primary
Account Affected
Line Item Amount
No. (a) (b) (©
29 |Dividends Declared-Common Stock (Account 438)
30
31 Dividends Declared-Common Stock (392,970,000)
32
33
34 TOTAL Dividends Declared-Common Stock (Account 438) (392,970,000)
35
36
Balance - End of the Year (Enter Total of lines 1 thru 36) 540,222,838

APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 215)

State balance and purpose of each appropriated retained earnings amount at end of year and give accounting
entries for any applications of appropriated retained earnings during the year.

38
39 TOTAL Appropriated Retained Earnings (Account 215) 0
40
41
42
43
APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS-AMORTIZATION RESERVE, FEDERAL (Account 215.1)
State below the total amount set aside through appropriations of retained earnings, as of the end of the year, in
compliance with the provisions of Federally granted hydroelectric project licenses held by the respondent. If any
reductions or changes other than the normal annual credits hereto have been made during the year, explain such
items in a footnote.
44 TOTAL Appropriated Retained Earnings-Amortization Reserve, Federal (Account 215.1) 58,299,816
45 TOTAL Appropriated Retained Earnings (Account 215 & 215.1) 58,299,816
46 TOTAL Retained Earnings (Accounts 215, 215.1 & 216) 598,522,654
UNAPPROPRIATED UNDISTRIBUTED SUBSIDIARY EARNINGS (Account 216.1)
47 |Balance-Beginning of Year (Debit or Credit) (390,730)
48 Equity in Earnings for Year (Credit) (Account 418.1) 112,800
49 (Less) Dividends Received (Debit) 0
50 | Other Changes (Dissolved subsidiaries - transferred to 216)
51 |Balance-End of Year (Enter Total of lines 47 thru 50) (277,930)
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Name of Respondent This Report Is:
(1) [ X1 An Original

Consumers Energy Company ) [ 1A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)
4/17/2013

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

1. If the notes to the cash flow statement in the respondent's annual

be included on pages 122-123. Information about noncash investing
and financing activities should be provided on pages 122-123. "Cash
and Cash Equivalents at End of Year" with related amounts on the
balance sheet.

2. Under "Other" specify significant amounts and group others.

stockholders report are applicable to this statement, such notes should 3 Qperating Activities-Other: Include gains and losses pertaining
to operating activities only. Gains and losses pertaining to
investing and financing activities should be reported in those
activities. Show on pages 122-123 the amounts of interest paid
(net of amounts capitalized) and income taxes paid.

Line Description (See instructions for Explanation of Codes ) Amounts
No. (a) (b)
1 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities: (enter outflows from company as negative #s)
2 Net Income (Line 78 (c) on page 117) 439,295,483
3 Noncash Charges (Credits) to Income:
4 Depreciation and Depletion 579,546,030
5 Amortization of capital leases and debt 35,062,843
6 Other non-cash operating activities 14,049
7 Regulatory Return on Capital Expenditures (648,369)
8 Deferred Income Taxes (Net) 142,796,371
9 Investment Tax Credit Adjustment (Net) (2,999,470)
10 Net (Increase) Decrease in Receivables (106,748,227)
11 Net (Increase) Decrease in Inventory 106,578,628
12 Net (Increase) Decrease in Allowances Inventory (4,890,264)
13 Net Increase (Decrease) in Payables and Accrued Expenses 68,658,700
14 Net (Increase) Decrease in Other Regulatory Assets 122,446,117
15 Net Increase (Decrease) in Other Regulatory Liabilities (11,965,623)
16 (Less) Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction 7,468,579
17 (Less) Undistributed Earnings from Subsidiary Companies 112,800
18 Other:
19 Prepayments 2,293,574
20 Changes in Other Assets and Liabilities (466,884)
21
22 Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (Total of lines 2 thru 21) 1,361,391,579
23
24 |Cash Flows from Investment Activities:
25 Construction and Acquisition of Plant (including land):
26 Gross Additions to Utility Plant (less nuclear fuel) (1,110,597,500)
27 Gross Additions to Nuclear Fuel 0
28 Gross Additions to Common Utility Plant (111,135,556)
29 Gross Additions to Nonutility Plant 0
30 (Less) Allowance to Other Funds Used During Construction 0
31 Other:
32
33 )
34 Cash Outflows for Plant (Total of lines 26 thru 33) 1,221,733,056
% R
36 Acquisition of Other Noncurrent Assets (d) 0
37 Proceeds from Disposal of Noncurrent Assets (d) 0
38 Costs to Retire Property (48,785,924)
39 Investments in and Advances to Assoc. and Subsidiary Companies (42,537,781)
40 Contributions and Advances from Assoc. and Subsidiary Companies 110,000,000
41 Disposition of Investments in (and Advances to)
42 Associated and Subsidiary Companies 0
43 Miscellaneous Investments (6,211,335)
44  |Purchase of Investment Securities (a) 0
45 |Proceeds from Sales of Investment Securities (a) 0

MPSC FORM P-521 (Rev 12-04) Page 120



Name of Respondent This Report Is: Date of Report
(1) [ X1 An Original (Mo, Da, Y1)
Consumers Energy Company @2)[ 1A Resubmission 4/17/2013

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

4.

Investing Activities

(a) Include at Other (line 31) net cash outflow to acquire other
companies. Provide a reconciliation of asset acquired with liabilities
assumed on pages 122-123.

(b) Do not include on this statement the dollar amount of leases
capitalized per USofA General Instruction 20; instead provide a
reconciliation of the dollar amount of leases capitalized with the plant
cost on pages 122-123.

5. Codes used:

(a) Net proceeds or payments.
(b) Bonds, debentures and other long-term debt.

(c) Include commercial paper.

(d) Identify separately such items as investments, fixed assets,

intangibles, etc.

6. Enter on pages 122-123 clarifications and explanations.

Line Description (See instructions for Explanation of Codes) Amount

No. (a) (b)

46 Loans Made or Purchased

47 Collections on Loans

48

49 Net (Increase) Decrease in Receivables

50 Net (Increase) Decrease in Inventory

51 Net (Increase) Decrease in Allowances Held for Speculation

52 Net Increase (Decrease) in Payables and Accrued Expenses

53 Other:

54

55

56 Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

57 (Total of lines 34 thru 55)
58

59 Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

60 Proceeds from Issuance of:

61 Long Term Debt (b) 1,177,700,000
62 Preferred Stock

63 Common Stock

64 Other:

65 Contribution from Stockholder 150,000,000
66 Net Increase in Short-Term Debt (c) 0
67 Other:

68

69

70 Cash Provided by Outside Sources (Total of lines 61 thru 69) 1,327,700,000
71

72 Payments for Retirement of: _
73 Long Term Debt (b) (1,127,700,000)
74 Preferred Stock

75 Common Stock

76 Other:

77 Payment of Capital Leases (23,456,540)
78 Net Decrease in Short-Term Debt (c)

79 Other Financing (6,579,581)
80 Dividends on Preferred Stock (1,963,932)
81 Dividends on Common Stock (392,970,000
82 Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities —
83 (Total of lines 70 thru 81) (224,970,053)
84

85 Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

86 (Total of lines 22, 57 and 83)
87

88 | cCash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
89

90 Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 16,521,238
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Use the space below for important notes regarding the

statement, providing a subheading for each statement except
where a note is applicable to more than one statement.

2. Furnish particulars (details) as to any significant contingent
assets or liabilities existing at end of year, including a brief
explanation of any action initiated by the Internal Revenue

material amount initiated by the utility. Give also a brief
stock.

of such amount, debits and credits during the year, and

Balance Sheet, Statement of Income for the year, Statement of
Retained Earnings for the year, and Statement of Cash Flows, or
any account thereof. Classify the notes according to each basic

Service involving possible assessment of additional income taxes
of material amount, or of a claim for refund of income taxes of a

explanation of any dividends in arrears on cumulative preferred

3. For Account 116, Utility Plant Adjustments, explain the origin

plan of dispostion contemplated giving references to
Commission orders or other authorizations respecting
classification of amounts as plant adjustments and
requirements as to disposition thereof.

4. Where Accounts 189, Unamortized Loss on Reacquired
Debt, and 257, Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt, are
not used, give an explanation, providing the rate treatment
given these items. See General Instruction 16 of Uniform
System of Accounts.

5. Give a concise explanation of any retained earnings
restrictions and state the amount of retained earnings
affected by such restrictions.

6. If the notes to financial statements relating to the
respondent company appearing in the annual report to the
stockholders are applicable and furnish the data required
by instructions above and on pages 114-121, such notes
may be herein.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Presentation

Consumers Energy Company

The footnotes included herein are from Consumers Energy’s annual report as of December 31, 2012, which are
prepared on a consolidated basis as permitted by instruction 6 on page 122 of this report. The accompanying
financial statements on pages 110-121 have been prepared in accordance with the accounting requirements of the
FERC as set forth in its Uniform System of Accounts (USOA) and accounting releases, which differ from
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP). These differences result in various
financial statement classification differences, but do not result in net income differences. Accordingly, the footnotes
have been presented on a consolidated basis as allowed by regulatory guidance.

The following are the significant differences between FERC reporting and U.S. GAAP:

Investments in Subsidiaries

Consumers’ investments in its subsidiaries are accounted for under the equity method of accounting in accordance

with USOA.

Accumulated Removal Costs

The accumulated removal costs for regulated property, plant and equipment that do not meet the definition of an
asset retirement obligation under ASC 410, Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations, are classified as a
regulatory liability under U.S. GAAP and as accumulated provision for depreciation under the USOA.

Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes

Accumulated deferred income taxes are classified as current and non-current for U.S. GAAP financial
reporting purposes by presenting net current assets and liabilities separate from net non-current assets and
liabilities on the balance sheet in accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes. To comply with USOA,
deferred income tax assets are reported as non-current deferred debits separate from deferred income tax

liabilities, which are classified and reported as non-current deferred credits.

Accumulated deferred income taxes are recognized for U.S. GAAP financial reporting purposes based on
the provisions of ASC 740-10, Income Taxes. In accordance with guidance issued by FERC in May 2007
(Docket No. AI07-2-000, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes), ASC
740-10 liabilities, recorded in accrued taxes, established for uncertain tax positions related to temporary

differences have been reclassified to the accumulated deferred income tax accounts.

ASC 740-10 requires interest and penalties, if applicable, to be accrued on differences between tax
positions recognized in our financial statements and the amount claimed, or expected to be claimed, on
the tax return. Consumers' policy for U.S. GAAP financial reporting purposes is to include interest and
penalties accrued, if any, on uncertain tax positions as part of income tax expense in the income
statement. To comply with USOA, interest expense and penalties, if any, attributable to uncertain tax
positions are included in Account 431, Interest Expense and Account 426.3, Penalties, respectively.
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Prepaid Property Taxes

Prepaid property taxes are classified as current and non-current assets for U.S. GAAP reporting and as
miscellaneous current and accrued assets under the USOA.

Debt

Current portions of long-term debt and bonds are classified as current liabilities for U.S. GAAP reporting. For
USOA all long-term liabilities and bonds both current and non-current portions are considered non-current

liabilities.

Other Reclassifications

Certain other reclassifications of balance sheet, income statement and cash flow amounts have been made in order to

conform to the USOA.

1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Corporate Structure: Consumers Energy is a combination electric and gas utility that provides service to
customers in Michigan’s lower peninsula. Consumers manages its business by the nature of services it
provides and operates principally in two business segments: electric utility and gas utility.

Principles of Consolidation: Consumers prepares its consolidated financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Consumers’ consolidated financial statements comprise Consumers and all other entities in
which it has a controlling financial interest or is the primary beneficiary. Consumers eliminates
intercompany transactions and balances.

Use of Estimates: Consumers is required to make estimates using assumptions that may affect reported
amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition Policy: Consumers recognizes revenue from deliveries of electricity and natural
gas, and from the transportation, processing, and storage of natural gas, when services are provided.

Consumers records unbilled revenue for the estimated amount of energy delivered to customers but not
yet billed. Consumers records sales tax net and excludes it from revenue.

Alternative-Revenue Programs: The MPSC’s 2009 gas rate case order authorized Consumers to
implement a gas revenue decoupling mechanism. This mechanism, which was extended through

April 2012 in the 2010 gas rate case order, allowed Consumers to adjust future gas rates to the degree that
actual average weather-adjusted sales per customer differed from the rate order. Consumers accounted
for this program as an alternative-revenue program that meets the criteria for recognizing the effects of
decoupling adjustments on revenue as gas is delivered. For details on Consumers’ decoupling
mechanisms, see Note 3, Regulatory Matters.

In 2009, the MPSC approved an energy optimization incentive mechanism that provides a financial
incentive if the energy savings of Consumers’ customers exceed annual targets established by the MPSC.
Consumers accounts for this program as an alternative-revenue program that meets the criteria for
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recognizing revenue related to the incentive as soon as energy savings exceed the annual targets
established by the MPSC.

Self-Implemented Rates: Unless prohibited by the MPSC upon a showing of good cause, Consumers is
allowed to self-implement new energy rates six months after a new rate case filing if the MPSC has not
issued an order in the case. The MPSC then has another six months to issue a final order. If the MPSC
does not issue a final order within that period, the filed rates are considered approved. If the MPSC issues
a final order within that period, the rates that Consumers self-implemented may be subject to refund, with
interest. Consumers recognizes revenue associated with self-implemented rates. If Consumers considers
it probable that it will be required to refund a portion of its self-implemented rates, then Consumers
records a provision for revenue subject to refund. For details on Consumers’ self-implemented rates, see
Note 3, Regulatory Matters.

Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable comprise trade receivables and unbilled receivables.
Consumers records its accounts receivable at cost, which approximates fair value. Consumers establishes
an allowance for uncollectible accounts based on historical losses, management’s assessment of existing
economic conditions, customer trends, and other factors. Consumers assesses late payment fees on trade
receivables based on contractual past-due terms established with customers. Consumers charges off
accounts deemed uncollectible to operating expense.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

Contingencies: Consumers records estimated liabilities for contingencies on its consolidated financial
statements when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and when the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated. Consumers expenses legal fees as incurred; fees incurred but not yet billed are
accrued based on estimates of work performed. This policy also applies to any fees incurred on behalf of
employees and officers under indemnification agreements; such fees are billed directly to Consumers.

Debt Issuance Costs, Discounts, Premiums, and Refinancing Costs: Consumers defers issuance costs,
discounts, and premiums associated with long-term debt and amortizes those amounts over the terms of
the debt issues. For the non-regulated portions of Consumers’ business, refinancing costs are expensed as
incurred. For the regulated portions of Consumers’ business, any remaining unamortized issuance costs,
discounts, and premiums associated with refinanced debt are amortized over the term of the newly issued
debt.

Derivative Instruments: In order to support ongoing operations, Consumers enters into contracts for the
future purchase and sale of various commodities, such as electricity, natural gas, and coal. These forward
contracts are generally long-term in nature and result in physical delivery of the commodity at a
contracted price. Most of these contracts are not subject to derivative accounting because:

e they do not have a notional amount (that is, a number of units specified in a derivative instrument,
such as MWh of electricity or bef of natural gas);

e they qualify for the normal purchases and sales exception; or
there is not an active market for the commodity.
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Consumers’ coal purchase contracts are not derivatives because there is not an active market for the coal
it purchases. If an active market for coal develops in the future, some of these contracts may qualify as
derivatives. Since Consumers is subject to regulatory accounting, the resulting fair value gains and losses
would be deferred as regulatory assets or liabilities and would not affect net income.

Consumers records derivative contracts that do not qualify for the normal purchases and sales exception
at fair value on its consolidated balance sheets. Each reporting period, the resulting asset or liability is
adjusted to reflect any change in the fair value of the contract. Since none of Consumers’ derivatives has
been designated as an accounting hedge, all changes in fair value are reported in earnings. Consumers did
not have significant amounts recorded as derivative assets or liabilities at December 31, 2012 or 2011.
Additionally, the gains and losses recognized in earnings were not significant for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011, or 2010.

Determination of Pension and OPEB MRV of Plan Assets: Consumers determines the MRV for
Pension Plan assets as the fair value of plan assets on the measurement date, adjusted by the gains or
losses that will not be admitted into the MRV until future years. Consumers reflects each year’s gain or
loss in the MRV in equal amounts over a five-year period beginning on the date the original amount was
determined. Consumers determines the MRV for OPEB plan assets as the fair value of assets on the
measurement date. Consumers uses the MRV in the calculation of net pension and OPEB costs. For
further details, see Note 11, Retirement Benefits.

Financial Instruments: Consumers records debt and equity securities classified as available for sale at
fair value as determined from quoted market prices or other observable, market-based inputs. Unrealized
gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value of these securities are determined on a specific-
identification basis. Consumers reports unrealized gains and losses on these securities, net of tax, in
equity as part of AOCI, except that unrealized losses determined to be other than temporary are reported
in earnings. For additional details regarding financial instruments, see Note 7, Financial Instruments.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: Consumers performs tests of impairment if certain triggering events
occur, or if there has been a decline in value that may be other than temporary.

Consumers evaluates long-lived assets held in use for impairment by calculating the undiscounted future
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If the undiscounted
future cash flows are less than the carrying amount, Consumers recognizes an impairment loss equal to
the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value. Consumers estimates the fair value of
the asset using quoted market prices, market prices of similar assets, or discounted future cash flow
analyses.

For additional details, see Note 17, Impairment Charges.

Inventory: Consumers uses the weighted-average cost method for valuing working gas, recoverable base
gas in underground storage facilities, and materials and supplies inventory. Consumers also uses this
method for valuing coal inventory, and it classifies these amounts as generating plant fuel stock on its
consolidated balance sheets.

Consumers accounts for RECs and emission allowances as inventory and uses the weighted-average cost
method to remove amounts from inventory. RECs and emission allowances are used to satisfy
compliance obligations related to the generation of power.
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Consumers uses the lower-of-cost-or-market method to evaluate inventory for impairment.

MISO Transactions: MISO requires the submission of hourly day-ahead and real-time bids and offers
for energy at locations across the MISO region. Consumers accounts for MISO transactions on a net
hourly basis in each of the real-time and day-ahead markets, netted across all MISO energy market
locations. Consumers records net hourly purchases in purchased and interchange power and net hourly
sales in operating revenue on its consolidated statements of income. Consumers records net billing
adjustments upon receipt of settlement statements, records accruals for future net purchases and sales
adjustments based on historical experience, and reconciles accruals to actual expenses and sales upon
receipt of settlement statements.

Property Taxes: Property taxes are based on the taxable value of Consumers’ real and personal property
assessed by local taxing authorities. Consumers records property tax expense over the fiscal year of the
taxing authority for which the taxes are levied based on Consumers’ budgeted customer sales. The
deferred property tax balance represents the amount of Consumers’ accrued property tax that will be
recognized over future governmental fiscal periods.

Reclassifications: Consumers has reclassified certain prior-period amounts on its consolidated financial
statements to conform to the presentation for the current period. These reclassifications did not affect
consolidated net income or cash flows for the periods presented.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents: Consumers has restricted cash and cash equivalents dedicated
for repayment of Securitization bonds and for payment under performance guarantees. Consumers
classifies these amounts as a current asset if they relate to payments that could or will occur within one

year.

2: NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income: This standard, which became effective
January 1, 2012 for Consumers, eliminates the option of reporting other comprehensive income and its
components on the statement of changes in equity. Prior to the implementation of this standard,
Consumers used this option for its consolidated financial statements. Under the standard, entities are
required to present either a single continuous statement of comprehensive income, containing both net
income and components of other comprehensive income, or two separate consecutive statements.
Consumers has chosen to present two separate consecutive statements. This standard affects only the

presentation of comprehensive income on Consumers’ consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements
in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs: This standard, which became effective January 1, 2012 for Consumers, is the
result of a joint project of the Financial Accounting Standards Board and the International Accounting
Standards Board. The primary objective of the standard is to ensure that fair value has the same meaning
under GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards and to establish common fair value
measurement guidance in the two sets of standards. The standard does not change the overall fair value
model in GAAP, but it amends various fair value principles and establishes additional disclosure
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requirements. This standard did not impact Consumers’ consolidated income, cash flows, or financial
position, but did require additional disclosures.

3: REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulatory matters are critical to Consumers. The Michigan Attorney General, ABATE, the MPSC Staff,
and certain other parties typically participate in MPSC proceedings concerning Consumers, such as
Consumers’ rate cases and PSCR and GCR processes. These parties often challenge various aspects of
those proceedings, including the prudence of Consumers’ policies and practices, and seek cost
disallowances and other relief. The parties also have appealed significant MPSC orders. Depending upon
the specific issues, the outcomes of rate cases and proceedings, including judicial proceedings challenging
MPSC orders or other actions, could have a material adverse effect on Consumers’ liquidity, financial
condition, and results of operations. Consumers cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings.

There are multiple appeals pending that involve various issues concerning cost allocation among
customers, the allocation of refunds among customer groups, the adequacy of the record evidence
supporting the recovery of Smart Energy investments, and other matters. Consumers is unable to predict
the outcome of these appeals.

REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Because Consumers is subject to the actions of the MPSC and FERC, Consumers prepares its
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the provisions of regulatory accounting. A utility
must apply regulatory accounting when its rates are designed to recover specific costs of providing
regulated services. Under regulatory accounting, Consumers records regulatory assets or liabilities for
certain transactions that would have been treated as expense or revenue by non-regulated businesses.
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Presented in the following table are the regulatory assets and liabilities on Consumers’ consolidated

balance sheets:

In Millions
End of Recovery
December 31 or Refund Period 2012 2011
Regulatory assets
Current
Gas revenue decoupling mechanism 2013 $ 16 $ -
Energy optimization plan incentive 2013 15 -
Cancelled coal-fueled plant costs' 2013 4 -
Other' 2012 - 1
Total current regulatory assets $ 35 $ 1
Non-current
Postretirement benefits? various $ 1,700 $ 1,665
Securitized costs® 2016 192 252
MGP sites® various 152 156
ARO* various 123 114
Unamortized debt costs’ various 55 44
Gas revenue decoupling mechanism 2014 17 21
Energy optimization plan incentive 2014 17 26
Gas storage inventory adjustments® various 15 14
Cancelled coal-fueled plant costs' 2015 7 -
Major maintenance' various 5 -
Big Rock nuclear decommissioning’ 2012 - 85
Electric revenue decoupling mechanism n/a - 59
Stranded costs' 2012 - 23
Other! various 4 7
Total non-current regulatory assets $ 2,287 $ 2,466
Total regulatory assets $ 2,322 $ 2467
Regulatory liabilities
Current
DOE settlement 2013 $ 23 $ 120
Other 2013 2 5
Total current regulatory liabilities $ 25 $§ 125
Non-current
Cost of removal various $ 1,441 $ 1,364
Income taxes, net various 336 181
Renewable energy plan 2028 175 161
ARO various 103 113
Energy optimization plan 2014 34 45
Other various 12 11

Total non-current regulatory liabilities

2,101 $ 1,875

Total regulatory liabilities

2,126 $ 2,000
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! These regulatory assets either are included in rate base (or are expected to be included, for costs incurred
subsequent to the most recently approved rate case), thereby providing a return on expenditures, or provide a
specific return on investment authorized by the MPSC.

2This regulatory asset is offset partially by liabilities. The net amount is included in rate base, thereby providing
a return.

* These regulatory assets represent expenditures for which the MPSC has provided, or Consumers expects,
recovery without a return on investment.

* Consumers records a regulatory asset and a regulatory liability for timing differences between the recognition of
ARO:s for financial reporting purposes and the recovery of these costs from customers. Although the regulatory
asset for AROs does not provide a return on investment, the underlying asset retirement costs are capitalized as
part of the carrying amount of the related asset and included in rate base, thereby providing a return.

REGULATORY ASSETS

Gas Revenue Decoupling Mechanism: The MPSC’s 2009 gas rate case order authorized Consumers to
implement a gas revenue decoupling mechanism. This mechanism, which was extended through

April 2012 in the 2010 gas rate case order, allowed Consumers to adjust future gas rates to the degree that
actual average weather-adjusted sales per customer differed from the rate order. This mechanism was not
affected by a separate Michigan Court of Appeals decision on electric revenue decoupling.

In September 2011, Consumers filed its first reconciliation of the gas revenue decoupling mechanism
with the MPSC, requesting recovery of $16 million from customers for the period June 2010 through
May 2011. In December 2012, the MPSC approved Consumers’ reconciliation for the full amount of its
request and authorized recovery over three months beginning in February 2013. In January 2013,
ABATE filed an appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals to dispute the MPSC’s order in this case that
Consumers is eligible to recover the portion of this amount allocated to transport customers.

Consumers filed its final reconciliation of the gas revenue decoupling mechanism in August 2012,
requesting recovery of $17 million from customers for the period June 2011 through April 2012.

Energy Optimization Plan Incentive: The MPSC has authorized Consumers to collect $15 million as an
incentive payment for exceeding savings targets under both its gas and electric optimization plans during
2011. The incentive will be collected over seven months beginning in June 2013.

During 2012, Consumers achieved 123 percent of its electric savings target and 132 percent of its gas
savings target. For achieving these savings levels, Consumers will request the MPSC’s approval to
collect $17 million, the maximum incentive, in the energy optimization reconciliation to be filed in
May 2013.

Cancelled Coal-Fueled Plant Costs: In its June 2012 order in Consumers’ electric rate case, the MPSC
authorized recovery of $14 million of development costs associated with Consumers’ proposed 830-MW
coal-fueled plant. The MPSC authorized Consumers to recover these costs over a three-year period. In
September 2012, a party in Consumers’ electric rate case filed an appeal with the Michigan Court of
Appeals to dispute the MPSC’s conclusion that authorized Consumers to recover these costs.
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Postretirement Benefits: As part of the ratemaking process, the MPSC allows Consumers to defer the
impact of actuarial gains and losses and prior service costs associated with postretirement benefits as a
regulatory asset and to recover these costs from customers. The asset will decrease as the deferred items
are amortized and recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost.

Securitized Costs: In 2000, the MPSC authorized recovery of securitization and tax charges related to
Consumers’ Securitization bonds over a period of up to 15 years.

MGRP Sites: Consumers expects to incur environmental remediation and other response activity costs at
23 former MGP facilities. The MPSC allows Consumers to recover from its natural gas customers over a
ten-year period the costs incurred to remediate the MGP sites.

ARO: The recovery of the underlying asset investments and related removal costs of recorded AROs are
approved by the MPSC in depreciation rate cases. Consumers records a regulatory asset and a regulatory
liability for timing differences between the recognition of AROs for financial reporting purposes and the

recovery of these costs from customers.

Unamortized Debt Costs: Under regulatory accounting, any unamortized debt costs related to debt
redeemed with the proceeds of new debt are capitalized and amortized over the life of the new debt.

Gas Storage Inventory Adjustments: Consumers incurs inventory expenses related to the loss of gas
from its natural gas storage fields. The MPSC allows Consumers to recover these costs from its natural
gas customers over a five-year period.

Major Maintenance: In its June 2012 order in Consumers’ electric rate case, the MPSC allowed
Consumers to defer major maintenance costs associated with certain plants in excess of the costs
approved in the rate order and recover these excess costs from customers, subject to MPSC approval.

Big Rock Nuclear Decommissioning and DOE Settlement: Consumers had recorded an $85 million
regulatory asset for $30 million it paid to Entergy to assume ownership responsibility for the Big Rock
ISFSI and for $55 million of nuclear fuel storage costs it incurred as a result of the DOE’s failure to
accept nuclear fuel. Consumers filed a complaint against the DOE in 2002 for this failure.

In July 2011, Consumers entered into an agreement with the DOE to settle its claims for $120 million. In
September 2011, Consumers filed an application with the MPSC requesting authority to utilize

$85 million of the settlement amount as recovery of its regulatory asset, and to refund to customers

$23 million previously collected through rates for spent nuclear fuel costs. In December 2012, the MPSC
approved this treatment. Consumers will refund $23 million to customers over a six-month period
beginning in January 2013. Consumers recognized the remaining $12 million of the settlement as a

reduction of maintenance and other operating expenses.

Electric Revenue Decoupling Mechanism: The MPSC’s 2009 electric rate case order authorized
Consumers to implement an electric revenue decoupling mechanism. This decoupling mechanism
allowed Consumers to adjust future electric rates to the degree that actual average sales per customer
differed from the rate order. At December 31, 2011, Consumers had recorded a $59 million regulatory
asset related to this mechanism.
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In April 2012, the Michigan Court of Appeals ruled in an appeal filed by ABATE that disputed the
MPSC’s decision to authorize an electric revenue decoupling mechanism for DTE Electric. The Court
concluded that the MPSC lacks statutory authority to approve or direct the use of a revenue decoupling
mechanism for electric providers. As a result, Consumers determined that it no longer met the accounting
criteria for recognition of a regulatory asset under an alternative revenue program, and wrote off its

$59 million electric revenue decoupling mechanism regulatory asset at March 31, 2012.

In November 2012, the Michigan Court of Appeals ruled in an appeal of the MPSC’s 2010 order in
Consumers’ electric rate case; this appeal had been filed by the Attorney General and ABATE. In light of
the Court’s previous ruling that the MPSC does not have authority to authorize electric decoupling, the
Court reversed the portion of the 2010 order related to Consumers’ electric revenue decoupling
mechanism, substantiating Consumers’ decision to write off its associated regulatory asset in March 2012.
In addition, the Court remanded this portion of the electric rate case to the MPSC for further proceedings.

Stranded Costs: These costs represent fixed generation costs that were incurred in 2002 and 2003 to
serve customers who elected to receive electricity from alternative energy suppliers. In 2004, the MPSC
approved the recovery of stranded costs from these customers. Consumers completed its recovery of the
stranded cost surcharge in December 2012.

REGULATORY LIABILITIES

Cost of Removal: These amounts have been collected from customers to fund future asset removal
activities. This regulatory liability is reduced as costs of removal are incurred.

Income Taxes, Net: These costs represent the difference between deferred income taxes recognized for
financial reporting purposes and amounts previously reflected in Consumers’ rates. This net balance will
decrease over the remaining life of the related temporary differences and flow through current income tax
benefit.

In December 2012, Consumers assigned $792 million of assets in the VEBA trust to pay future
prescription drug costs. This preserved the tax benefits lost upon enactment of the Health Care Acts. As
a result, Consumers remeasured its deferred income taxes and recognized an offsetting $151 million
increase in regulatory liabilities.

Renewable Energy Plan: At December 31,2012 and 2011, surcharges collected from customers to fund
Consumers’ renewable energy plan exceeded Consumers’ spending. This regulatory liability is amortized
as costs are incurred to operate and depreciate Consumers’ wind farms and as Consumers purchases
RECs under renewable energy purchase agreements.

Energy Optimization Plan: At December 31,2012 and 2011, surcharges collected from customers to

fund Consumers’ energy optimization plan exceeded Consumers’ spending. The associated regulatory
liability is amortized as costs are incurred under Consumers’ energy optimization plan.
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OTHER RATE MATTERS
ELECTRIC UTILITY

Electric Rate Case: In June 2012, the MPSC authorized an annual rate increase of $118 million, based
on a 10.3 percent authorized return on equity. Consumers filed an application in September 2012 to
reconcile the total revenues collected during self-implementation to those that would have been collected
under final rates. This reconciliation requests that the MPSC find that no refund is required.

The annual rate increase authorized by the MPSC included a $20 million increase in annual depreciation
expense resulting from the new depreciation rates that the MPSC approved in June 2011 in Consumers’
electric depreciation case. These new depreciation rates went into effect with the June 2012 electric rate
case order.

GAS UTILITY

Gas Rate Case: In September 2011, Consumers filed an application with the MPSC seeking an annual
rate increase of $49 million, based on a 10.7 percent authorized return on equity, in order to recover
investments made to enhance safety, system reliability, and operational efficiencies that improve service
to customers. Consumers self-implemented an annual rate increase of $23 million in March 2012, subject
to refund with interest.

In June 2012, the MPSC authorized an annual rate increase of $16 million, based on a 10.3 percent
authorized return on equity. In January 2013, the MPSC approved Consumers’ reconciliation of the total
revenues collected during self-implementation to those that would have been collected under final rates.
As a result of the reconciliation, which found that a refund was required, Consumers had a $2 million
regulatory liability recorded at December 31, 2012. Consumers will refund this amount to customers in
March 2013.

POWER SUPPLY COST RECOVERY AND GAS COST RECOVERY

The PSCR and GCR processes are designed to allow Consumers to recover all of its power supply and
purchased natural gas costs if incurred under reasonable and prudent policies and practices. The MPSC
reviews these costs, policies, and practices in annual plan and reconciliation proceedings. Consumers
adjusts its PSCR and GCR billing factors monthly in order to minimize the overrecovery or
underrecovery amount in the annual reconciliations.

PSCR Plans: In July 2012, the MPSC approved Consumers’ 2011 PSCR plan, authorizing the
2011 PSCR charge that Consumers self-implemented beginning in January 2011.

Consumers submitted its 2012 PSCR plan to the MPSC in September 2011, and in accordance with its

proposed plan, self-implemented the 2012 PSCR charge beginning in January 2012. In February 2012,
Consumers filed a revised 2012 PSCR plan, which significantly reduced costs.
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PSCR Reconciliations: Presented in the following table are details about the PSCR reconciliation filing

pending with the MPSC:
PSCR Cost of
Overrecovery Power Sold
PSCR Year Date Filed (In Millions) (In Billions)
2011 March 2012 $ 1.8

In December 2012, the MPSC issued an order in Consumers’ 2010 PSCR reconciliation, approving full
recovery of $1.7 billion of power costs and authorizing Consumers to roll into its 2011 PSCR plan the

underrecovery of $11 million.

GCR Plans: In March 2012, the MPSC approved Consumers’ 2011-2012 GCR plan, authorizing the

2011-2012 GCR charge that Consumers self-implemented beginning in April 2011.

Consumers submitted its 2012-2013 GCR plan to the MPSC in December 2011, and in accordance with
its proposed plan, self-implemented the 2012-2013 GCR charge beginning in April 2012.

GCR Reconciliations: Presented in the following table are details about the GCR reconciliation filing

pending with the MPSC:
GCR Cost of
Overrecovery Gas Sold
GCR Year Date Filed (In Millions) (In Billions)
2011-2012 June 2012 $ 09

In March 2012, the MPSC issued an order in Consumers’ 2009-2010 GCR reconciliation, approving full
recovery of $1.3 billion in gas costs and authorizing Consumers to roll into its 2010-2011 GCR plan the

overrecovery of $1 million.

In September 2012, the MPSC issued an order in Consumers’ 2010-2011 GCR reconciliation, approving
full recovery of $1.2 billion in gas costs and authorizing Consumers to roll into its 2011-2012 GCR plan

an overrecovery of $6 million.

Consumers’ PSCR and GCR mechanisms also represent probable future revenues that will be recovered
from customers or previously collected revenues that will be refunded to customers through the
ratemaking process. Underrecoveries are included in accrued power supply and overrecoveries are

included in accrued rate refunds on Consumers’ consolidated balance sheets.

Consumers reflected the following assets and liabilities for PSCR and GCR underrecoveries and
overrecoveries on its consolidated balance sheets:

In Millions
December 31 2012 2011
Accrued power supply revenue $ 32 $ -
Accrued rate refunds 6 30
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4: CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Consumers is involved in various matters that give rise to contingent liabilities. Depending on the
specific issues, the resolution of these contingencies could have a material effect on Consumers’ liquidity,
financial condition, and results of operations. In its disclosures of these matters, Consumers provides an
estimate of the possible loss or range of loss when such an estimate can be made. Disclosures that state
that Consumers cannot predict the outcome of a matter indicate that it is unable to estimate a possible loss

or range of loss for the matter.

ELECTRIC UTILITY CONTINGENCIES

Electric Environmental Matters: Consumers’ operations are subject to environmental laws and
regulations. Historically, Consumers has generally been able to recover, in customer rates, the costs to
operate its facilities in compliance with these laws and regulations.

Cleanup and Solid Waste: Consumers expects to incur remediation and other response activity costs at a
number of sites under NREPA. Consumers believes that these costs should be recoverable in rates, but
cannot guarantee that outcome. Consumers estimates that its liability for NREPA sites will be between
$4 million and $6 million. At December 31, 2012, Consumers had a recorded liability of $4 million, the
minimum amount in the range of its estimated probable NREPA liability.

Consumers is a potentially responsible party at a number of contaminated sites administered under the
Superfund. Superfund liability is joint and several. In 2010, Consumers received official notification
from the EPA that identified Consumers as a potentially responsible party for cleanup of PCBs at the
Kalamazoo River Superfund site. The notification claimed that the EPA has reason to believe that
Consumers disposed of PCBs and arranged for the disposal and treatment of PCB-containing materials at
portions of the site. In April 2011, Consumers received a follow-up letter from the EPA requesting that
Consumers agree to participate in a removal action plan along with several other companies for an area of
lower Portage Creek, which is connected to the Kalamazoo River. All parties, including Consumers, that
were asked to participate in the removal action plan declined to accept liability. In August 2011, the EPA
announced that it would proceed with the removal action plan and would continue to pursue potentially
responsible parties to perform or pay for some or all of the work. Until further information is received
from the EPA, Consumers is unable to estimate a range of potential liability for cleanup of the river.

Based on its experience, Consumers estimates that its share of the total liability for other known
Superfund sites will be between $2 million and $8 million. Various factors, including the number of
potentially responsible parties involved with each site, affect Consumers’ share of the total liability. At
December 31, 2012, Consumers had a recorded liability of $2 million for its share of the total liability at
these sites, the minimum amount in the range of its estimated probable Superfund liability.

The timing of payments related to Consumers’ remediation and other response activities at its Superfund
and NREPA sites is uncertain. Consumers periodically reviews these cost estimates. Any significant
change in the underlying assumptions, such as an increase in the number of sites, different remediation
techniques, the nature and extent of contamination, and legal and regulatory requirements, could affect its
estimates of NREPA and Superfund liability.
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Ludington PCB: In 1998, during routine maintenance activities, Consumers identified PCB as a
component in certain paint, grout, and sealant materials at Ludington. Consumers removed and replaced
part of the PCB material with non-PCB material. Consumers has had several communications with the
EPA regarding this matter. Consumers is not able to predict when the EPA will issue a final ruling and
cannot predict the financial impact or outcome of this matter.

Electric Utility Plant Air Permit Issues and Notices of Violation: In 2007, Consumers received an
NOV/FOV from the EPA alleging that fourteen utility boilers exceeded the visible emission limits in their
associated air permits. Consumers has responded formally to the NOV/FOV denying the allegations. In
addition, in 2008, Consumers received an NOV for three of its coal-fueled facilities alleging, among other
things, violations of NSR PSD regulations relating to ten projects from 1986 to 1998 allegedly subject to
review under the NSR. The EPA has alleged that some utilities have classified incorrectly major plant
modifications as RMRR rather than seeking permits from the EPA or state regulatory agencies to modify
their plants. Consumers responded to the information requests from the EPA on this subject in the past.
Consumers believes that it has properly interpreted the requirements of RMRR.

Consumers is engaged in discussions with the EPA on all of these matters. Depending upon the outcome
of these discussions, the EPA could bring legal action against Consumers and/or Consumers could be
required to install additional pollution control equipment at some or all of its coal-fueled electric
generating plants, surrender emission allowances, engage in Supplemental Environmental Projects, and/or
pay fines. Additionally, Consumers would need to assess the viability of continuing operations at certain
plants. The potential costs relating to these matters could be material. Consumers expects that it would
be able to recover some or all of the costs in rates, consistent with the recovery of other reasonable costs
of complying with environmental laws and regulations, but cannot reasonably estimate the extent of cost
recovery. Although Consumers cannot predict the financial impact or outcome of the entirety of these
discussions, it does not expect any future loss from civil penalties and/or Supplemental Environmental
Projects to be material.

Nuclear Matters: The matters discussed in this section relate to Consumers’ previously owned nuclear
generating plants.

In 1997, a U.S. Court of Appeals decision confirmed that the DOE was to begin accepting deliveries of
spent nuclear fuel for disposal by January 1998. Subsequent U.S. Court of Appeals litigation, in which
Consumers and other utilities participated, had not been successful in producing more specific relief for
the DOE’s failure to accept the spent nuclear fuel. A number of court decisions have supported the right
of utilities to pursue damage claims in the U.S. Court of Claims against the DOE. Consumers filed a
complaint in 2002 for damages resulting from the DOE’s failure to accept spent nuclear fuel from
Palisades and Big Rock.

In July 2011, Consumers entered into an agreement with the DOE to settle its claims for $120 million. As
part of this agreement, Consumers also settled its liability to the DOE to fund the disposal of spent
nuclear fuel used at Palisades and Big Rock before 1983. In December 2012, the MPSC issued an order
establishing the regulatory treatment of the settlement amount. In this order, the MPSC also relieved
Consumers of its obligation to establish an independent trust fund for the amount that was payable to the
DOE prior to the settlement. For further information on this order, see Note 3, Regulatory Matters.
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In September 2012, Entergy, which purchased Palisades and the Big Rock ISFSI from Consumers in
2007, filed a lawsuit against the DOE for damages resulting from the DOE’s delay in receiving spent
nuclear fuel from those plants, dating from the close of the sale. Under Consumers’ sales agreement
relating to Big Rock and Palisades, Consumers paid Entergy $30 million to assume ownership and
responsibility for the Big Rock ISFSI, and Consumers also reserved any claim against the DOE for the
first $30 million in damages related to the Big Rock ISFSI that occurred following the sale close.
Entergy’s damages claim, as presently stated, includes a claim for this Big Rock amount. Although
Consumers believes Entergy has no valid claim for the $30 million Big Rock amount, in the event that
Entergy were successful in recovering the $30 million from the DOE, the DOE would have the ability to
recoup the payment from Consumers. In order to protect its interests, Consumers has filed a motion to
intervene in Entergy’s lawsuit against the DOE. Consumers cannot predict the outcome of this matter.

GAS UTILITY CONTINGENCIES

Gas Environmental Matters: Consumers expects to incur remediation and other response activity costs
at a number of sites under the NREPA. These sites include 23 former MGP facilities. Consumers
operated the facilities on these sites for some part of their operating lives. For some of these sites,
Consumers has no present ownership interest or may own only a portion of the original site.

At December 31, 2012, Consumers had a recorded liability of $122 million for its remaining obligations
for these sites. This amount represents the present value of long-term projected costs, using a discount
rate of 2.57 percent and an inflation rate of 2.5 percent. Consumers based the discount rate on the interest
rate for 20-year U.S. Treasury securities at December 31, 2011. The undiscounted amount of the
remaining obligation is $134 million. Consumers expects to incur remediation and other response activity
costs in each of the next five years as follows:

In Millions
2013 2014 2016 2017

Consumers
Remediation and other response activity costs 11 § 1 $ 11 $ 10

Consumers periodically reviews these cost estimates. Any significant change in the underlying
assumptions, such as an increase in the number of sites, changes in remediation techniques, or legal and
regulatory requirements, could affect Consumers’ estimates of annual response activity costs and the

MGP liability.

Pursuant to orders issued by the MPSC, Consumers defers its MGP-related remediation costs and
recovers them from its customers over a ten-year period. At December 31, 2012, Consumers had a

regulatory asset of $152 million related to the MGP sites.

OTHER CONTINGENCIES

Other Environmental Matters: Consumers initiated preliminary investigations during 2012 at a number
of potentially contaminated sites it presently owns with the intention of determining whether any
contamination exists and the extent of any identified contamination. The sites being investigated include
combustion turbine sites, generating sites, compressor stations, and above-ground storage tanks.
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Consumers will continue its preliminary investigations at potentially contaminated sites through 2013.
Consumers cannot predict an outcome at this stage of the investigations.

GUARANTEES

Presented in the following table are Consumers’ guarantees at December 31, 2012:

In Millions

Maximum Carrying

Guarantee Description Issue Date  Expiration Date  Obligation Amount

Various through

Indemnity obligations and other guarantees Various  September 2029 $ 30 § 1
Presented in the following table is additional information regarding Consumers’ guarantees:

Guarantee Description How Guarantee Arose Events That Would Require Performance

Indemnity obligations and Normal operating Nonperformance or claims made by a third

other guarantees activity party under a related contract

Consumers enters into various agreements containing tax and other indemnity provisions for which it is
unable to estimate the maximum potential obligation. These factors include unspecified exposure under
certain agreements. Consumers considers the likelihood that it would be required to perform or incur
substantial losses related to these indemnities to be remote.

OTHER CONTINGENCIES

Other: In addition to the matters disclosed in this Note and Note 3, Regulatory Matters, there are certain
other lawsuits and administrative proceedings before various courts and governmental agencies arising in
the ordinary course of business to which Consumers is a party. These other lawsuits and proceedings
may involve personal injury, property damage, contracts, environmental matters, federal and state taxes,
rates, licensing, employment, and other matters. Further, Consumers occasionally self-reports certain
regulatory non-compliance matters that may or may not eventually result in administrative proceedings.
Consumers believes that the outcome of any one of these proceedings will not have a material adverse
effect on its consolidated results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity.
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CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

Purchase Obligations: Presented in the following table are Consumers’ contractual purchase obligations
at December 31, 2012 for each of the periods shown.

Purchase obligations arise from long-term contracts for the purchase of commodities and related services,
and construction and technology services. The commodities and related services include natural gas and
associated transportation, electricity, and coal and associated transportation.

In Millions
Payments Due
Beyond
Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017
Purchase obligations $ 12326 $ 1,878 $ 1,084 $ 934 § 89 $ 853 § 6,708
Purchase obligations —
related parties 1,469 89 91 91 93 95 1,010

The MCV PPA: Consumers has a 35-year PPA that began in 1990 with the MCV Partnership to
purchase 1,240 MW of electricity. The MCV PPA, as amended and restated, provides for:

e acapacity charge of $10.14 per MWh of available capacity;

e afixed energy charge based on Consumers’ annual average baseload coal generating plant
operating and maintenance cost, fuel inventory, and average administrative and general expenses;

e avariable energy charge for all delivered energy that reflects the MCV Partnership’s cost of
production;

e a$5 million annual contribution by the MCV Partnership to a renewable resources program; and
an option for Consumers to extend the MCV PPA for five years or purchase the MCV Facility at
the conclusion of the MCV PPA’s term in March 2025.

Capacity and energy charges under the MCV PPA were $319 million in 2012, $292 million in 2011, and
$285 million in 2010. Consumers estimates that capacity and energy charges under the MCV PPA will
average $250 million annually. These amounts are included in the table above.

The Palisades PPA: Consumers has a PPA expiring in 2022 with Entergy to purchase all of the capacity
and energy produced by Palisades, up to the annual average capacity of 798 MW. Consumers estimates
that capacity and energy payments under the Palisades PPA will average $360 million annually. A
portion of these amounts is included in the table above. Consumers’ total purchases of capacity and
energy under the PPA were $331 million in 2012, $311 million in 2011, and $286 million in 2010. For
further details about Palisades, see Note 10, Leases.
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5: FINANCINGS AND CAPITALIZATION

Presented in the following table is Consumers’ long-term debt at December 31:

In Millions
Interest Rate

(%) Maturity 2012 2011

FMBs! 5.000 2012 $ - 8 300

53752 2013 - 375

6.000 2014 200 200

5.000 2015 225 225

2.600 2015 50 50

5.500 2016 350 350

5.150 2017 250 250

3.210 2017 100 100

5.650 2018 250 250

6.125 2019 350 350

6.700 2019 500 500

5.650 2020 300 300

3.770 2020 100 100

5.300 2022 250 250

2.850 2022 375 -

3.190 2024 52 -

3.390 2027 35 -

5.800 2035 175 175

6.170 2040 50 50

4.970 2040 50 50

4.310 2042 263 -

$ 3,925 $ 3,875

Senior notes 6.875 2018 180 180

Securitization bonds 5.718 3 2013-2015 133 171

Tax-exempt pollution control revenue bonds various 2018-2035 103 103

Total principal amount outstanding $ 4341 $§ 4329
Current amounts 41) (339)
Net unamortized discounts 3) 3)

Total long-term debt $ 4297 $ 3,987

'The weighted-average interest rate for Consumers’ FMBs was 5.19 percent at December 31, 2012 and
5.52 percent at December 31, 2011.

%In May 2012, Consumers retired its 5.375 percent FMBs.

> The weighted-average interest rate for Consumers’ Securitization bonds was 5.72 percent at December 31, 2012
and 5.65 percent at December 31, 2011.
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Financings: Presented in the following table is a summary of major long-term debt transactions during

the year ended December 31, 2012:

Principal Issue/Retirement
(In Millions) Interest Rate Date Maturity Date
Debt issuances
FMB $375 2.850 % May 2012 May 2022
Term loan facility' 350 variable July 2012 March 2013
Tax-exempt bonds’ 68 variable August 2012 April 2018
Tax-exempt bonds? 35 variable August 2012 April 2035
FMB 52 3.190 % December 2012  December 2024
FMB 35 3.390 % December 2012  December 2027
FMB 263 4.310 % December 2012 December 2042
Total debt issuances $1,178
Debt retirements
FMB $300 5.000 % February 2012 February 2012
FMB 375 5375 % May 2012 April 2013
Tax-exempt bonds 68 variable August 2012 April 2018
Tax-exempt bonds’ 35 variable August 2012 April 2035
Term loan facility' 350 variable December 2012 March 2013
Total debt retirements $1,128

'In June 2012, Consumers entered into a short-term credit agreement permitting Consumers to borrow up to
$375 million. This agreement was terminated using proceeds from FMBs issued in December 2012.

2In August 2012, Consumers utilized the Michigan Strategic Fund for the issuance of $68 million and
$35 million of tax-exempt Michigan Strategic Fund revenue bonds. The bonds, which are backed by letters of
credit and collateralized by Consumers’ FMBs, are subject to optional tender by the holders that would result in
remarketing. Consumers used the proceeds to redeem $103 million of tax-exempt bonds in August 2012.

FMBs: Consumers secures its FMBs by a mortgage and lien on substantially all of its property.
Consumers’ ability to issue FMBs is restricted by certain provisions in the First Mortgage Bond Indenture
and the need for regulatory approvals under federal law. Restrictive issuance provisions in the First
Mortgage Bond Indenture include achieving a two-times interest coverage ratio and having sufficient

unfunded net property additions.

Regulatory Authorization for Financings: FERC has authorized Consumers to have outstanding at any
one time, up to $500 million of secured and unsecured short-term securities for general corporate
purposes. The remaining availability was $500 million at December 31, 2012. FERC has also authorized
Consumers to issue and sell up to $1.9 billion of secured and unsecured long-term securities for general
corporate purposes. The remaining availability was $1.6 billion at December 31, 2012. The
authorizations are for the period ending June 30, 2014. Any long-term issuances during the authorization
period are exempt from FERC’s competitive bidding and negotiated placement requirements.

Securitization Bonds: Certain regulatory assets owned by Consumers’ subsidiary Consumers Funding
collateralize Consumers’ Securitization bonds. The bondholders have no recourse to Consumers’ other
assets. Through its rate structure, Consumers bills customers for Securitization surcharges to fund the
payment of principal, interest, and other related expenses. The surcharges collected are remitted to a
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trustee and are not available to creditors of Consumers or creditors of Consumers’ affiliates other than
Consumers Funding.

Debt Maturities: At December 31, 2012, the aggregate annual contractual maturities for long-term debt
for the next five years were:

In Millions
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Long-term debt $ 41 $ 243 $ 324 $ 350 $ 350

Revolving Credit Facilities: The following secured revolving credit facilities with banks were available
at December 31, 2012:

In Millions

Letters of Credit
Expiration Date Amount of Facility Amount Borrowed Outstanding Amount Available
December 21, 2017! $ 500 $ - $ 2 $ 498
April 18,2017 150 - - 150
September 9, 2014 30 - 30 -

! Obligations under this facility are secured by FMBs of Consumers.

Short-term Borrowings: Under Consumers’ revolving accounts receivable sales program, Consumers
may transfer up to $250 million of accounts receivable, subject to certain eligibility requirements. These
transactions are accounted for as short-term secured borrowings. At December 31, 2012, $140 million of
accounts receivable were eligible for transfer, and $110 million had been transferred under the program.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, Consumers’ average short-term borrowings totaled

$20 million, with a weighted-average annual interest rate of 0.94 percent.

Dividend Restrictions: Under the provisions of its articles of incorporation, at December 31, 2012,
Consumers had $536 million of unrestricted retained earnings available to pay common stock dividends
to CMS Energy, its sole stockholder. Provisions of the Federal Power Act and the Natural Gas Act
appear to restrict dividends payable by Consumers to the amount of Consumers’ retained earnings.
Several decisions from FERC suggest that under a variety of circumstances common stock dividends
from Consumers would not be limited to amounts in Consumers’ retained earnings. Any decision by
Consumers to pay common stock dividends in excess of retained earnings would be based on specific
facts and circumstances and would result only after a formal regulatory filing process. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, Consumers paid $393 million of common stock dividends.

6: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Accounting standards define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. When measuring fair value,
Consumers is required to incorporate all assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an
asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. A fair value hierarchy prioritizes inputs used to
measure fair value according to their observability in the market. The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are as follows:
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e Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 inputs are observable, market-based inputs, other than Level 1 prices. Level 2 inputs may
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices in inactive
markets, and inputs derived from or corroborated by observable market data.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs that reflect Consumers’ own assumptions about how
market participants would value its assets and liabilities.

To the extent possible, Consumers uses quoted market prices or other observable market pricing data in
valuing assets and liabilities measured at fair value. If this information is unavailable, Consumers uses
market-corroborated data or reasonable estimates about market participant assumptions. Consumers
classifies fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ON A RECURRING BASIS

Presented in the following tables are Consumers’ assets and liabilities, by level within the fair value
hierarchy, recorded at fair value on a recurring basis:

In Millions
December 31, 2012 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Restricted cash equivalents $ 13 $ 13 $ - $ -
CMS Energy common stock 32 32 - -
Nonqualified deferred compensation plan assets 4 4 - -
DB SERP
Cash equivalents 1 1 - -
Mutual funds 85 85 - -
Derivative instruments
Commodity contracts 2 - - 2
Total $ 137 $ 135 $ - $ 2
Liabilities
Nonqualified deferred compensation plan liabilities $ 4 $ 4 $ - $ -
Total $ 4 $§ 4 $ - $ -
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In Millions
December 31, 2011 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Cash equivalents $ 56 $ 56 $ - $ -
Restricted cash equivalents 14 14 - -
CMS Energy common stock 35 35 - -
Nonqualified deferred compensation plan assets 3 3 - -
DB SERP
Cash equivalents 1 1 - -
Mutual funds 74 74 - -
Derivative instruments
Commodity contracts 2 - - 2
Total $ 185 $ 183 $ - $ 2
Liabilities
Nonqualified deferred compensation plan liabilities $ 3 $ 3 $ - $ -
Total $ 3 $ 3 $ - $ -

Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalents consist of money market funds with
daily liquidity. Short-term debt instruments classified as restricted cash equivalents on the consolidated
balance sheets are not included since they are recorded at amortized cost.

Nongqualified Deferred Compensation Plan Assets and Liabilities: The nonqualified deferred
compensation plan assets consist of mutual funds, which are valued using the daily quoted NAVs that are
publicly available and are the basis for transactions to buy or sell shares in each fund. Consumers values
its nonqualified deferred compensation plan liabilities based on the fair values of the plan assets, as they
reflect what is owed to the plan participants in accordance with their investment elections. Consumers
reports the assets in other non-current assets and the liabilities in other non-current liabilities on its
consolidated balance sheets.

DB SERP Assets: Consumers values its DB SERP assets using a market approach that incorporates
quoted market prices. The DB SERP cash equivalents consist of a money market fund with daily
liquidity. The DB SERP invests in mutual funds that hold primarily fixed-income instruments of varying
maturities. In order to meet their investment objectives, the funds hold investment-grade debt securities,
and may invest a portion of their assets in high-yield securities, foreign debt, and derivative instruments.
Consumers values these funds using the daily quoted NAVs that are publicly available and are the basis
for transactions to buy or sell shares in each fund. Consumers reports its DB SERP assets in other non-
current assets on its consolidated balance sheets. For additional details about DB SERP securities, see
Note 7, Financial Instruments.

Derivative Instruments: Consumers values its derivative instruments using either a market approach that
incorporates information from market transactions, or an income approach that discounts future expected
cash flows to a present value amount. Consumers has classified certain derivatives as Level 3 since the
fair value measurements incorporate assumptions that cannot be observed or confirmed through market
transactions.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ON A RECURRING BASIS USING
SIGNIFICANT LEVEL 3 INPUTS

Presented in the following table are reconciliations of changes in the fair values of Level 3 assets and
liabilities at Consumers:

In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 2 $ 1 $
Total gains offset through regulatory accounting 6 2 3
Purchases 1 1 1
Settlements (@) 2) 3)
Balance at end of period $ 2 $ 2 $ 1

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ON A NONRECURRING BASIS

Consumers had no nonrecurring fair value measurements during the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011, and 2010.

7: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Presented in the following table are the carrying amounts and fair values, by level within the fair value
hierarchy, of Consumers’ financial instruments that are not recorded at fair value. The table does not
include information on cash, cash equivalents, short-term accounts and notes receivable, short-term
investments, and current liabilities since the carrying amount of these items approximate their fair values
because of their short-term nature. For information about assets and liabilities recorded at fair value and
for additional details regarding the fair value hierarchy, see Note 6, Fair Value Measurements.

In Millions
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carrying Fair Value Carrying
Amount Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Amount  Fair Value
Long-term debt' $ 4,338 $ 5,015 $ - $ 3,989 $ 1,026 $ 4,326 $ 4,882

"Includes current portion of long-term debt of $41 million at December 31, 2012 and $339 million at
December 31, 2011.

Consumers estimates the fair value of its long-term debt using quoted prices from market trades of the
debt, if available. In the absence of quoted prices, Consumers calculates market yields and prices for the
debt using a matrix method that incorporates market data for similarly rated debt. Depending on the
information available, other valuation techniques and models may be used that rely on assumptions that
cannot be observed or confirmed through market transactions.

The effects of third-party credit enhancements are excluded from the fair value measurements of long-

term debt. At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, Consumers’ long-term debt included
$103 million principal amount that was supported by third-party credit enhancements.
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Presented in the following table are Consumers’ investment securities classified as available for sale:

In Millions
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Unrealized Unrealized Fair Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for sale
DB SERP
Mutual funds $ 83 $ 2 $ - $ 8 §$ 74 $ - $ - $ 74
CMS Energy
common stock 6 26 - 32 7 28 - 35

The mutual funds classified as available for sale hold primarily fixed-income instruments of varying
maturities. During the year ended December 31, 2012, Consumers contributed $9 million to the
DB SERP. The contributions were used to acquire additional shares in the mutual funds.

Presented in the following table is a summary of the sales activity for Consumers’ investment securities:

In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Proceeds from sales of investment securities $ 2 $ 19 $ -

The sales proceeds for all periods represent sales of investments that were held within the DB SERP and
classified as available for sale. Realized gains and losses on the sales were not significant for Consumers
during each period. In 2011, Consumers sold its DB SERP investments in state and municipal bonds, and
reinvested the proceeds in a mutual fund that holds fixed-income instruments of varying maturities.

Consumers recognized gains of $5 million in 2012 and $4 million in 2011 from transferring shares of
CMS Energy common stock to a related charitable foundation. The gains reflected the excess of fair
value over cost of the stock donated and were included in income. Consumers did not transfer any shares
of CMS Energy common stock in 2010.
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8: PLANT, PROPERTY, AND EQUIPMENT

Presented in the following table are details of Consumers’ plant, property, and equipment:

In Millions
Estimated
Depreciable
Years Ended December 31 Life in Years 2012 2011
Electric
Generation 22 - 125 4254 $ 3,936
Distribution 23 - 75 5,831 5,538
Other 5- 50 677 651
Capital and finance leases 279 275
Gas
Distribution 30 - 80 2,861 2,754
Transmission 13 - 75 770 722
Underground storage facilities' 30 - 65 339 322
Other 5- 50 424 403
Capital leases 6 5
Other non-utility property 8 - 51 15 15
Construction work in progress 1,080 782
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (5,061) (4,846)

Net plant, property, and equipment’

11475 § 10,557

'Underground storage includes base natural gas of $26 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011. Base natural gas

is not subject to depreciation.

?For the year ended December 31, 2012, utility plant additions were $999 million and utility plant retirements
were $168 million. For the year ended December 31, 2011, utility plant additions were $700 million and utility

plant retirements were $104 million.

Presented in the following table is further detail on changes in Consumers’ capital and finance leases:

In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of period $ 280 $ 278
Additions 9 4
Net retirements and other adjustments 4) 2)

Balance at end of period

$§ 285 § 280
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Capital and finance leases presented are gross amounts. Accumulated amortization of capital and finance
leases was $108 million at December 31, 2012 and $87 million at December 31, 2011 for Consumers.

Presented in the following table is further detail on Consumers’ accumulated depreciation and
amortization:

In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011
Utility plant assets $ 5060 § 4844
Non-utility plant assets 1 2

Maintenance and Depreciation: Consumers records property repairs and minor property replacement as
maintenance expense. Consumers records planned major maintenance activities as operating expense
unless the cost represents the acquisition of additional long-lived assets or the replacement of an existing
long-lived asset.

Consumers depreciates utility property on an asset-group basis, in which it applies a single MPSC-
approved depreciation rate to the gross investment in a particular class of property within the electric and
gas segments. Consumers performs depreciation studies periodically to determine appropriate group
lives. Presented in the following table are the composite depreciation rates for Consumers’ segment
properties:

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010

Electric utility property 32% 3.0% 3.0%
Gas utility property 2.9 % 29% 29 %
Other property 7.2 % 7.4 % 7.4 %

Consumers records plant, property, and equipment at original cost when placed into service. The cost
includes labor, material, applicable taxes, overhead such as pension and other benefits, and AFUDC, if
applicable. Consumers’ plant, property, and equipment is generally recoverable through its general rate
making process. For additional details, see Note 3, Regulatory Matters.

When utility property is mothballed, the property stays in rate base and continues to be depreciated at the
same rate as before the mothball period. When utility property is retired or otherwise disposed of in the
ordinary course of business, Consumers records the original cost to accumulated depreciation, along with
associated cost of removal, net of salvage. Consumers recognizes gains or losses on the retirement or
disposal of non-regulated assets in income. Consumers records cost of removal collected from customers,
but not spent, as a regulatory liability.
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Consumers capitalizes AFUDC on regulated major construction projects, except pollution control
facilities on its fossil-fueled power plants. AFUDC represents the estimated cost of debt and authorized
return-on-equity funds used to finance construction additions. Consumers records the offsetting credit as
a reduction of interest for the amount representing the borrowed funds component and as other income for
the equity funds component on the consolidated statements of income. When construction is completed
and the property is placed in service, Consumers depreciates and recovers the capitalized AFUDC from
customers over the life of the related asset. Presented in the following table are Consumers’ composite
AFUDC capitalization rates:

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
AFUDC capitalization rate 73 % 7.6 % 7.6 %

Consumers capitalizes the purchase and development of internal-use computer software. These costs are
expensed evenly over the estimated useful life of the internal-use computer software. If computer
software is integral to computer hardware, then its cost is capitalized and depreciated with the hardware.
The types of costs capitalized are consistent for all periods presented by the financial statements.

Intangible Assets: Included in net plant, property, and equipment are intangible assets. Presented in the
following table are Consumers’ intangible assets:

In Millions

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011
Amortization Accumulated Accumulated
Description Life in years Gross Cost' Amortization Gross Cost' Amortization
Software development 3- 15 $ 464 $ 172 $ 360 $ 14
Plant acquisition adjustments 40 - 46 214 27 214 22
Rights of way 50- 175 130 40 128 38
Leasehold improvements various? 13 10 11 9
Franchises and consents 5- 30 14 6 15 7
Other intangibles various 18 14 18 14
Total $ 853 $ 269 $ 746 $ 231

"Net intangible asset additions for Consumers’ utility plant were $108 million during 2012 and $23 million
during 2011 and primarily represented software development costs.

?Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of the lease, which may change whenever the lease is
renewed or extended.
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Presented in the following table is Consumers’ amortization expense related to intangible assets:

In Millions

Total Software

Amortization Amortization

Years Ended December 31 Expense Expense
2012 $ 38 $ 30
2011 32 24
2010 27 19

Amortization of intangible assets is expected to range between $46 million and $56 million per year over
the next five years.

JOINTLY OWNED REGULATED UTILITY FACILITIES

Presented in the following table are Consumers’ investments in jointly owned regulated utility facilities at
December 31, 2012:

In Millions, Except Ownership Share

Campbell Unit 3 Ludington Distribution
Ownership share 933 % 51.0 % various
Utility plant in service $ 1,080 $ 175 $ 182
Accumulated depreciation 431) (147) (56)
Construction work-in-progress 84 87 5
Net investment $ 733 $ 115 $ 131

Consumers includes its share of the direct expenses of the jointly owned plants in operating expenses.
Consumers shares operation, maintenance, and other expenses of these jointly owned utility facilities in
proportion to each participant’s undivided ownership interest. Consumers is required to provide only its
share of financing for the jointly owned utility facilities.

9: LEASES

Consumers leases various assets, including service vehicles, railcars, gas pipeline capacity, and buildings.
In addition, Consumers accounts for a number of its PPAs as capital and operating leases.

Operating leases for coal-carrying railcars have lease terms expiring without extension provisions over
the next 11 years and with extension provisions over the next 14 years. These leases contain fair market
value extension and buyout provisions, with some providing for predetermined extension period rentals.
Capital leases for Consumers’ vehicle fleet operations have a maximum term of 120 months with some
having end-of-lease rental adjustment clauses based on the proceeds received from the sale or disposition
of the vehicles, and others having fixed percentage purchase options.

Consumers has capital leases for gas transportation pipelines to the Karn generating complex and
Zeeland. The capital lease for the gas transportation pipeline into the Karn generating complex has a term
of 15 years with a provision to extend the contract from month to month. The remaining term of the
contract was nine years at December 31, 2012. The capital lease for the gas transportation pipeline to
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Zeeland, which had a term of 12 years, was extended in 2012 for five years pursuant to the renewal
provision at the end of the contract. At December 31, 2012, the remaining term of the contract was
five years with a renewal provision of five years at the end of the contract. The remaining terms of
Consumers’ long-term PPAs accounted for as leases range between one and 20 years. Most of these
PPAs contain provisions at the end of the initial contract terms to renew the agreements annually.

Presented in the following table are Consumers’ minimum lease expense and contingent rental expense
for each of the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010.

Years Ended December 31

Minimum operating lease expense

PPAs
Other agreements
Contingent rental expense'

In Millions

2011 2010
$ 10 $ 5
22 22

11 14

!Contingent rental expense is related to capital and operating lease PPAs.

Consumers is authorized by the MPSC to record operating lease payments as operating expense and
recover the total cost from customers.
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Presented in the following table are the minimum annual rental commitments under Consumers’ non-
cancelable leases at December 31, 2012.

In Millions

Capital Leases Finance Lease' Operating Leases

2013 $ 14 $ 20 $ 26

2014 13 19 25

2015 14 18 24

2016 10 17 19

2017 9 17 19

2018 and thereafter 36 62 67

Total minimum lease payments $ 96 $ 153 $ 180
Less imputed interest 43 31
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 53 $ 122
Less current portion 9 13
Non-current portion § 44 $ 109

1n 2007, Consumers sold Palisades to Entergy and entered into a 15-year PPA to buy all of the capacity and
energy then capable of being produced by Palisades. Consumers has continuing involvement with Palisades
through security provided to Entergy for Consumers’ PPA obligation and other arrangements. Because of these
ongoing arrangements, Consumers accounted for the transaction as a financing of Palisades and not a sale.
Accordingly, no gain on the sale of Palisades was recognized on the consolidated statements of income.
Consumers accounted for the remaining non-real-estate assets and liabilities associated with the transaction as a
sale.

Palisades remains on Consumers’ consolidated balance sheets and Consumers continues to depreciate it.
Consumers recorded the related proceeds as a finance obligation with payments recorded to interest expense
and the finance obligation based on the amortization of the obligation over the life of the Palisades PPA. The
value of the finance obligation was determined based on an allocation of the transaction proceeds to the fair
values of the net assets sold and fair value of the plant asset under the financing. Total amortization and interest
charges under the financing were $20 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, $21 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011, and $22 million for the year ended December 31, 2010.

10: ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Consumers records the fair value of the cost to remove assets at the end of their useful lives, if there is a
legal obligation to remove them. No market risk premiums were included in Consumers’ ARO fair value
estimates since reasonable estimates could not be made. If a five percent market risk premium were
assumed, Consumers’ ARO liabilities at December 31, 2012 would increase by $16 million and at
December 31, 2011 would increase by $13 million. In 2012, Consumers updated the ARO for coal ash
disposal areas to reflect a revised estimate of future obligations, and recorded the initial estimate for the
Lake Winds® Energy Park ARO.

If a reasonable estimate of fair value cannot be made in the period in which the ARO is incurred, such as
for assets with indeterminate lives, the liability is recognized when a reasonable estimate of fair value can
be made. Consumers has not recorded liabilities for assets that have insignificant cumulative disposal
costs, such as substation batteries.
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Presented below are the categories of assets that Consumers has legal obligations to remove at the end of
their useful lives and for which it has an ARO liability recorded:

ARO Description

In-Service

Date

Long-Lived Assets

Closure of coal ash disposal areas

Closure of wells at gas storage fields
Indoor gas services equipment relocations

Asbestos abatement

Gas distribution cut, purge, and cap

Closure of wind farm

Various
Various
Various
1973
Various
2012

Generating plants coal ash areas

Gas storage fields

Gas meters located inside structures

Electric and gas utility plant

Gas distribution mains and services

Wind generation facilities

No assets have been restricted for purposes of settling AROs.

Presented in the following tables are the changes in Consumers’ ARO liabilities:

In Millions

ARO ARO

Liability Cash flow Liability

ARO Description 12/31/2011  Incurred  Settled' Accretion  Revisions 12/31/2012

Coal ash disposal areas $ 70 $ - $ 3 $ 7 $ 40 $ 114

Wells at gas storage fields 1 - ) - - -

Asbestos abatement 42 - ) 2 - 43
Gas distribution cut, purge,

and cap 140 4 3) 10 - 151

Wind farm - 3 - - - 3

Total $ 253 $ 7 $ (8 $ 19 $ 40 $ 311

In Millions

ARO ARO

Liability Cash flow Liability

ARO Description 12/31/2010  Incurred  Settled' Accretion  Revisions 12/31/2011

Coal ash disposal areas $ 66 $ - $ 2 $ 6 $ - $ 70

Wells at gas storage fields 1 - - - - 1

Indoor gas services relocations 1 - ) - - -

Asbestos abatement 40 - ) 3 - 42
Gas distribution cut, purge,

and cap 136 2) 3) 9 - 140

Total $ 244 $ @ $ D $ 18 $ - $ 253

!Cash payments of $8 million in 2012 and $7 million in 2011 were included in other current and non-current
assets and liabilities as a component of net cash provided by operating activities in Consumers’ consolidated

statements of cash flow.
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11: RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Consumers provides pension, OPEB, and other retirement benefits to employees under a number of
different plans. These plans include:

e anon-contributory, qualified defined benefit Pension Plan (closed to new non-union participants
as of July 1, 2003 and closed to new union participants as of September 1, 2005);

e a qualified cash balance Pension Plan for certain employees hired between July 1, 2003 and
August 31, 2005;
a non-contributory, qualified DCCP for employees hired on or after September 1, 2005;

e benefits to certain management employees under a non-contributory, nonqualified DB SERP
(closed to new participants as of March 31, 2006);

e anon-contributory, nonqualified DC SERP for certain management employees hired or promoted
on or after April 1, 2006;

e health care and life insurance benefits under an OPEB plan; and
a contributory, qualified defined contribution 401(k) plan.

Pension Plan: Participants in the Pension Plan include Consumers’ and CMS Energy’s present
employees, employees of their subsidiaries, and employees of Panhandle, a former CMS Energy
subsidiary. Pension Plan trust assets are not distinguishable by company.

Consumers provides an employer contribution of five percent of base pay to the DCCP 401(k) plan for
employees hired on or after September 1, 2005. On January 1, 2011, the employer contribution was
increased to six percent. Employees are not required to contribute in order to receive the plan’s employer
contribution.

Participants in the cash balance Pension Plan, effective July 1, 2003 to August 31, 2005, also participate

in the DCCP as of September 1, 2005. Additional pay credits under the cash balance Pension Plan were

discontinued as of September 1, 2005. DCCP expense for Consumers was $8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012, $7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, and $5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

DB SERP: The DB SERP is a non-qualified plan as defined by the Internal Revenue Code. DB SERP
benefits are paid from a rabbi trust established in 1988. DB SERP rabbi trust earnings are taxable.

Presented in the following table are the fair value of trust assets, ABO, and contributions for Consumers’
DB SERP:

In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011
Trust assets $ 87 $ 75
ABO 86 76
Contributions 9 20

DC SERP: On April 1, 2006, Consumers implemented a DC SERP and froze further new participation in
the DB SERP. The DC SERP provides participants benefits ranging from 5 percent to 15 percent of total
compensation. The DC SERP requires a minimum of five years of participation before vesting.
Consumers’ contributions to the plan, if any, are placed in a grantor trust. Consumers’ trust assets were
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$1 million at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011. DC SERP assets are included in other non-
current assets on Consumers’ consolidated balance sheets. Consumers’ DC SERP expense was less than

$1 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010.

401(k): The 401(k) plan employer match equals 60 percent of eligible contributions up to the first
six percent of an employee’s wages. The total 401(k) plan cost for Consumers was $16 million for each
of the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 and $15 million for the year ended December 31, 2010.

OPEB: Participants in the OPEB plan include all regular full-time employees covered by the employee
health care plan on the day before retirement from Consumers at age 55 or older with at least ten full
years of applicable continuous service. Regular full-time employees who qualify for Pension Plan
disability retirement and have 15 years of applicable continuous service may also participate in the OPEB
plan. Retiree health care costs were based on the assumption that costs would increase 8.0 percent for
those under 65 and 7.5 percent for those over 65 in 2013 and 7.5 percent in 2012 for all retirees. The rate

of increase was assumed to decline to five percent for all retirees by 2019 and thereafter.

The assumptions used in the health care cost-trend rate affect service, interest, and PBO costs. Presented
in the following table are the effects of a one-percentage-point change in the health care cost-trend

assumption:
In Millions
One Percentage One Percentage
Years Ended December 31 Point Increase Point Decrease
Effect on total service and interest cost component $ 22 $ (19
Effect on PBO 273 (235)
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Assumptions: Presented in the following table are the weighted-average assumptions used in Consumers’
retirement benefits plans to determine benefit obligations and net periodic benefit cost:

Pension and DB SERP OPEB
December 31 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Weighted average for benefit
obligations
Discount rate' 4.10 % 4.90 % 5.40 % 4.40 % 5.10 % 5.60 %
Mortality table? 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000
Rate of compensation increase
Pension 3.00 % 3.50 % 4.00 %
DB SERP 5.50 % 5.50 % 5.50 %
Weighted average for net
periodic benefit cost
obligations
Discount rate' 4.90 % 5.40 % 5.85 % 5.10 % 5.60 % 6.00 %
Expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets® 7.75 % 8.00 % 8.00 % 7.25 % 7.50 % 7.50 %
Mortality table? 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000
Rate of compensation increase
Pension 3.50 % 4.00 % 4.00 %
DB SERP 5.50 % 5.50 % 5.50 %

'The discount rate reflects the rate at which benefits could be effectively settled and is equal to the equivalent
single rate resulting from a yield curve analysis. This analysis incorporated the projected benefit payments
specific to Consumers’ Pension Plan and OPEB plan and the yields on high quality corporate bonds rated Aa or

better.

> The mortality assumption was based on the RP-2000 mortality tables with projection of future mortality
improvements using Scale AA, which aligned with the IRS prescriptions for cash funding valuations under the

Pension Protection Act of 2006.

? Consumers determined the long-term rate of return using historical market returns, the present and expected
future economic environment, the capital market principles of risk and return, and the expert opinions of
individuals and firms with financial market knowledge. Consumers considered the asset allocation of the

portfolio in forecasting the future expected total return of the portfolio. The goal was to determine a long-term
rate of return that could be incorporated into the planning of future cash flow requirements in conjunction with
the change in the liability. Annually, Consumers reviews for reasonableness and appropriateness the forecasted
returns for various classes of assets used to construct an expected return model. Consumers’ expected long-
term rate of return on Pension Plan assets was 7.75 percent in 2012. The actual return on Pension Plan assets
was 14.1 percent in 2012, four percent in 2011, and 13 percent in 2010.
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Costs: Presented in the following tables are the costs and other changes in plan assets and benefit
obligations incurred in Consumers’ retirement benefits plans:

In Millions
Pension and DB SERP
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Net periodic pension and DB SERP cost
Service cost $ 48 3 48 § 44
Interest expense 100 101 99
Expected return on plan assets (122) (109) (89)
Amortization of:
Net loss 71 63 50
Prior service cost 5 5 5
Net periodic pension and DB SERP cost $ 108 § 108 $ 109
Regulatory adjustment’ - - 30
Net periodic pension and DB SERP cost after regulatory adjustment $ 108 § 108 $ 139
In Millions
OPEB
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Net periodic OPEB cost
Service cost $ 31 $§ 26 $ 25
Interest expense 79 74 77
Expected return on plan assets (61) (61) (56)
Amortization of:
Net loss 47 31 33
Prior service credit (20) (20) (16)
Net periodic OPEB cost $ 76 $ 50 § 63
Regulatory adjustment’ - - 5
Net periodic OPEB cost after regulatory adjustment $§ 76 $ 50 $ 68

'Regulatory adjustments are the differences between amounts included in rates and the periodic benefit cost
calculated. These regulatory adjustments were offset by surcharge revenues, which resulted in no impact to net
income for the years presented. The pension and OPEB regulatory asset was less than $1 million at
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Consumers’ estimated net loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit Pension Plans that will be
amortized into net periodic benefit cost in 2013 from the regulatory asset is $98 million. Consumers’

estimated net loss and prior service credit for the OPEB plans that will be amortized into net periodic

benefit cost in 2013 from the regulatory asset is $23 million.

Consumers amortizes net gains and losses in excess of ten percent of the greater of the PBO or the MRV
over the average remaining service period. The estimated period of amortization of gains and losses for
Consumers was 11 years for pension and 13 years for OPEB for each of the years ended

December 31, 2012 and 2011 and 12 years for pension and 14 years for OPEB for the year ended
December 31, 2010. Prior service cost amortization is established in the year in which the prior service
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cost first occurred, and is based on the same amortization period for all future years until the prior service
costs are fully amortized. Consumers had new prior service credits for OPEB in 2010. The estimated
period of amortization of these new prior service credits for Consumers was ten years for OPEB for the

year ended December 31, 2010.

Reconciliations: Presented in the following tables are reconciliations of the funded status of Consumers’

retirement benefits plans with its retirement benefits plans’ liabilities:

In Millions
Pension Plan
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011
Benefit obligation at beginning of period $ 2,072 $ 1,8%
Service cost 48 48
Interest cost 99 100
Actuarial loss 249 107
Benefits paid (114) (79)
Benefit obligation at end of period 2,354 2,072
Plan assets at fair value at beginning of period $ 1,626 §$§ 1401
Actual return on plan assets 215 54
Company contribution - 250
Actual benefits paid (114) (79
Plan assets at fair value at end of period 1,727 1,626
Funded status' $§ (627) § (446)
In Millions
DB SERP OPEB

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2012 2011
Benefit obligation at beginning of period $ 8  $ 77 $ 1,585 $§ 1,358
Service cost 1 1 31 26
Interest cost 4 4 79 74
Actuarial loss 13 6 24 178
Benefits paid 3) 3) (49) (51y
Benefit obligation at end of period $ 100 § 85 $ 1,670 $§ 11,5853
Plan assets at fair value at beginning of period $ - 8 - $ 861 § 825
Actual return on plan assets - - 101 21
Company contribution 3 3 64 66
Actual benefits paid 3) 3) (48)* (51)
Plan assets at fair value at end of period $ - 8 - $ 978 §$ 861
Funded status $§ (@do0)y $ (89) $ (692) $§ (724

YAt December 31, 2012, $590 million of the total funded status of the Pension Plan was attributable to
Consumers based on an allocation of expenses. At December 31,2011, $414 million of the funded status of the

Pension Plan was attributable to Consumers based on an allocation of expenses.

2 Consumers received payments of $5 million in each of 2012, 2011, and 2010 for the Medicare Part D subsidies.

The Medicare Part D subsidy payments are used to pay OPEB plan benefits.
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> The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003 established a prescription drug
benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D) and a federal subsidy, which is tax-exempt, to sponsors of retiree
health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. In 2010, the
Health Care Acts repealed these tax-exempt deductions for years beginning after December 31, 2012.
Consumers’ Medicare Part D annualized reduction in net OPEB costs was $19 million for 2012, $25 million for
2011, and $26 million for 2010. The reduction included $7 million for 2012, $9 million for 2011, and
$10 million for 2010 in capitalized OPEB costs.

At December 31, 2012, Consumers classified $4 million of DB SERP liabilities as current liabilities, and
$590 million of Pension Plan, $96 million of DB SERP, and $692 million of OPEB liabilities as non-
current liabilities on its consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2011, Consumers classified

$4 million of DB SERP liabilities as current liabilities, and $414 million of Pension Plan, $81 million of
DB SERP, and $724 million of OPEB liabilities as non-current liabilities on its consolidated balance
sheets.

Presented in the following table are the Pension Plan PBO, ABO, and fair value of plan assets:

In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011
Pension PBO $ 2354 § 2,072
Pension ABO 2,054 1,765
Fair value of Pension Plan assets 1,727 1,626

Items Not Yet Recognized as a Component of Net Periodic Benefit Cost: Presented in the following
table are the amounts recognized in regulatory assets and AOCI that have not been recognized as
components of net periodic benefit cost. For additional details on regulatory assets, see Note 3,
Regulatory Matters.

In Millions
Pension and DB SERP OPEB

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2012 2011
Regulatory assets

Net loss $ 1,095 $ 1,014 $ 704 $§ 766

Prior service cost (credit) 13 17 (112) (132)
AOCI

Net loss 38 27 - -
Total amounts recognized in regulatory assets

and AOCI $ 1,146 § 1,058 $§ 592 § 634
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Plan Assets: Presented in the following tables are the fair values of Consumers’ Pension Plan and OPEB
plan assets, by asset category and by level within the fair value hierarchy. For additional details regarding
the fair value hierarchy, see Note 6, Fair Value Measurements.

In Millions
Pension Plan
December 31, 2012 Total Level 1 Level 2
Asset category
Cash and short-term investments' $ 33 § 33 § -
U.S. government and agencies securities’ 26 - 26
Corporate debt’ 271 - 277
State and municipal bonds’ 8 - 8
Foreign corporate bonds® 27 - 27
Mutual funds® 319 319 -
Pooled funds’ 1,037 - 1,037
Total $ 1,727 $§ 352 $§ 1375
In Millions
Pension Plan
December 31, 2011 Total Level 1 Level 2
Asset category
Cash and short-term investments' $ 241 $ 241 $ -
U.S. government and agencies securities’ 24 - 24
Corporate debt’ 236 - 236
State and municipal bonds’ 10 - 10
Foreign corporate bonds* 23 - 23
Mutual funds? 257 257 -
Pooled funds’ 835 - 835
Total $ 1,626 § 498 § 1,128
In Millions
OPEB Plan
December 31, 2012 Total Level 1 Level 2
Asset category
Cash and short-term investments' $ 111 $ 111 $
U.S. government and agencies securities 3 - 3
Corporate debt’ 35 - 35
State and municipal bonds® 1 - 1
Foreign corporate bonds* 3 -
Common stocks’ 70 70 -
Mutual funds® 281 281 -
Pooled funds'’ 474 - 474
Total $ 978 § 462 § 516
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In Millions
OPEB Plan
December 31, 2011 Total Level 1 Level 2
Asset category
Cash and short-term investments! $ 60 $ 60 $ -
U.S. government and agencies securities’ 189 - 189
Corporate debt* 26 - 26
State and municipal bonds® 66 - 66
Foreign corporate bonds® 3 - 3
Common stocks’ 105 105 -
Mutual funds® 29 29 -
Pooled funds" 383 - 383
Total $ 861 $§ 194 § 667

!Cash and short-term investments consist of money market funds with daily liquidity.

2U.S. government and agencies securities consist of U.S. Treasury notes and other debt securities backed by the
U.S. government and related agencies. These securities were valued based on quoted market prices.

3 At December 31, 2012, corporate debt investments in the Pension Plan comprised investment grade bonds
(68 percent) and non-investment grade, high-yield bonds (32 percent) of U.S. issuers from diverse industries.
At December 31, 2011, corporate debt investments in the Pension Plan comprised investment grade bonds
(69 percent) and non-investment grade, high-yield bonds (31 percent) of U.S. issuers from diverse industries.
These securities are valued based on quoted market prices, when available, or yields presently available on
comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

* At December 31, 2012, corporate debt investments in the OPEB plan comprised investment grade bonds
(68 percent) and non-investment grade, high-yield bonds (32 percent) of U.S. issuers from diverse industries.
At December 31, 2011, corporate debt investments in the OPEB plan comprised investment grade bonds
(69 percent) and non-investment grade, high-yield bonds (31 percent) of U.S. issuers from diverse industries.
These securities are valued based on quoted market prices, when available, or yields presently available on
comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

> State and municipal bonds were valued using a matrix-pricing model that incorporates Level 2 market-based
information. The fair value of the bonds was derived from various observable inputs, including benchmark
yields, reported securities trades, broker/dealer quotes, bond ratings, and general information on market
movements for investment grade state and municipal securities normally considered by market participants
when pricing such debt securities.

%Foreign corporate debt securities were valued based on quoted market prices, when available, or on yields
available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

7 Common stocks in the OPEB plan consist of equity securities with low transaction costs that were actively
managed and tracked by the S&P 500 Index. These securities were valued at their quoted closing prices.

¥ Mutual funds represent shares in registered investment companies that are priced based on the daily quoted
NAVs that are publicly available and are the basis for transactions to buy or sell shares in the funds.

?Pooled funds in the Pension Plan include both common and collective trust funds as well as special funds that
contain only employee benefit plan assets from two or more unrelated benefit plans. At December 31, 2012,
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these funds comprised investments in U.S. equity securities (51 percent), foreign equity securities (26 percent),
foreign fixed-income securities (14 percent), U.S. fixed-income securities (four percent), and alternative
investments (five percent). At December 31, 2011, these funds comprised investments in U.S. equity securities
(53 percent), foreign equity securities (22 percent), foreign fixed-income securities (16 percent), U.S. fixed-
income securities (five percent), and alternative investments (four percent). These investments were valued at
the quoted NAV provided by the fund managers that is the basis for transactions to buy or sell shares in the
funds.

9pooled funds in the OPEB plan include both common and collective trust funds as well as special funds that
contain only employee benefit plan assets from two or more unrelated benefit plans. At December 31, 2012,
these funds comprised investments in U.S. equity securities (65 percent), foreign equity securities (21 percent),
foreign fixed-income securities (nine percent), U.S. fixed-income securities (three percent), and alternative
investments (two percent). At December 31,2011, these funds comprised investments in U.S. equity securities
(88 percent), foreign equity securities (six percent), foreign fixed-income securities (four percent), U.S. fixed-
income securities (one percent), and alternative investments (one percent). These investments are valued at the
quoted NAV provided by the fund managers that is the basis for transactions to buy or sell shares in the funds.

Presented in the following table are the contributions to Consumers’ OPEB plan and Pension Plan:

In Millions

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011
OPEB'

VEBA trust $ 45 $ 47

401(h) component 19 19

$ 64 $ 66

Pension’ $ - $ 245

'Consumers plans to contribute $73 million to the OPEB plan in 2013.

2 Consumers planned to contribute $49 million to the Pension Plan in 2013. This Pension Plan contribution was
made in January 2013.

Contributions include required and discretionary amounts. Actual future contributions will depend on
future investment performance, changes in discount rates, and various factors related to the populations
participating in the plans.

In 2011, Consumers reached its target asset allocation for Pension Plan assets of 50 percent equity,

30 percent fixed income, and 20 percent alternative-strategy investments. This target asset allocation is
expected to continue to maximize the long-term return on plan assets, while maintaining a prudent level
of risk. The level of acceptable risk is a function of the liabilities of the plan. Equity investments are
diversified mostly across the S&P 500 Index, with lesser allocations to the S&P MidCap and SmallCap
Indexes and Foreign Equity Funds. Fixed-income investments are diversified across investment grade
instruments of government and corporate issuers as well as high-yield and global bond funds. Alternative
strategies are diversified across absolute return investment approaches and global tactical asset allocation.
Consumers uses annual liability measurements, quarterly portfolio reviews, and periodic asset/liability
studies to evaluate the need for adjustments to the portfolio allocation.

Consumers established union and non-union VEBA trusts to fund its future retiree health and life
insurance benefits. These trusts are funded through the ratemaking process. In 2012, Consumers adjusted
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its target asset allocation to 50 percent equity, 20 percent fixed income, and 30 percent alternative-
strategy investments. This target allocation is expected to continue to maximize the long-term return on
plan assets, while maintaining a prudent level of risk. The level of acceptable risk is a function of the
liabilities of the plan. Equity investments are diversified mostly across the S&P 500 Index, with lesser
allocations to the S&P SmallCap Index and Foreign Equity Funds. Fixed-income investments are
diversified across investment grade instruments of government and corporate issuers. Alternative
strategies are diversified across absolute return investment approaches and global tactical asset allocation.
Consumers uses annual liability measurements, quarterly portfolio reviews, and periodic asset/liability
studies to evaluate the need for adjustments to the portfolio allocation.

Benefit Payments: Presented in the following table are the expected benefit payments for each of the
next five years and the five-year period thereafter:

In Millions

Pension DB SERP OPEB!

2013 $ 117 $ 4 $ 59
2014 125 4 63
2015 134 4 67
2016 140 4 71
2017 146 4 76
2018-2022 773 20 432

'Consumers’ OPEB benefit payments are net of employee contributions and expected Medicare Part D
prescription drug subsidy payments. Subsidies to be received are estimated to be $6 million for each 0f 2013
and 2014, $7 million for each of 2015 and 2016, $8 million for 2017, and $48 million combined for 2018
through 2022.

Collective Bargaining Agreements: At December 31, 2012, unions represented 45 percent of
Consumers’ employees. The UWUA represents Consumers’ operating, maintenance, construction, and
call center employees. The USW represents Zeeland employees. Union contracts expire in 2015.

12: STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Consumers provides a PISP to key employees and non-employee directors based on their contributions to
the successful management of the company. The PISP has a five-year term, expiring in May 2014.

All grants under the PISP for 2012, 2011, and 2010 were in the form of TSR restricted stock and time-
lapse restricted stock. Restricted stock recipients receive shares of CMS Energy common stock.
Restricted stock shares granted prior to August 1, 2010 have full dividend and voting rights. The TSR
restricted stock shares granted after August 1, 2010 continue to have full voting rights. In lieu of cash
dividend payments, however, the TSR restricted stock shares granted after August 1, 2010 receive
additional restricted shares equal to the value of the dividend. These additional restricted shares are
subject to the same vesting conditions as the underlying restricted stock shares.

TSR restricted stock vesting is contingent on meeting a three-year service requirement and a specific

market condition. The market condition is based entirely on a comparison of CMS Energy’s TSR with
the median TSR of a peer group over the same three-year period. Depending on the outcome of the
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market condition, a recipient may earn a total award ranging from zero to 200 percent of the initial grant.
Time-lapse restricted stock vests after a service period of three years.

Restricted stock awards granted to officers in 2012 and 2011 were 75 percent TSR restricted stock and
25 percent time-lapse restricted stock. Awards granted to officers in 2010 were 67 percent TSR restricted
stock and 33 percent time-lapse restricted stock.

For awards granted prior to August 1, 2010, restricted shares may vest fully upon retirement, disability, or
change of control of CMS Energy if certain minimum service requirements are met or are waived by
action of the C&HR Committees. If employment terminates for any other reason (other than death) or the
minimum service requirements are not met or waived, the restricted shares will be fully forfeited. For
awards granted after August 1, 2010, a pro-rata portion of the award equal to the portion of the service
period served between the award grant date and the employee’s termination date will vest upon
termination of an employee due to retirement, disability, or change of control of CMS Energy. For TSR
awards, this vesting is contingent upon the outcome of the market condition. The remaining portion of
the award will be forfeited. All awards vest fully upon death.

The PISP also allows for stock options, stock appreciation rights, phantom shares, performance units, and
incentive options, none of which was granted in 2012, 2011, or 2010.

Shares awarded or subject to stock options, phantom shares, or performance units may not exceed

6 million shares from June 2009 through May 2014, nor may such awards to any recipient exceed
500,000 shares in any fiscal year. Consumers may issue awards of up to 2,972,977 shares of common
stock under the PISP at December 31, 2012. Shares for which payment or exercise is in cash, as well as
shares or stock options forfeited for any reason other than failure to meet a market condition, may be
awarded or granted again under the PISP.

Presented in the following table is restricted stock activity under the PISP:

Weighted-Average Grant Date

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Number of Shares Fair Value per Share
Nonvested at beginning of period 1,689,997 $ 1636
Granted' 889,070 12.28
Vested (1,014,450) 8.36
Forfeited (17,494) 19.94
Nonvested at end of period 1,547,123 $ 1922

1During 2012, Consumers granted 291,722 TSR shares, 169,754 time-lapse shares, 37,109 shares from dividends
paid on TSR shares, and 390,485 shares granted as a result of the outcome of the TSR awards’ market
condition.

Consumers charges the fair value of the awards to expense over the required service period. As a result,
for awards granted prior to August 1, 2010, Consumers recognizes all compensation expense for share-
based awards that have accelerated service provisions upon retirement by the period in which the
employee becomes eligible to retire. TSR restricted stock awards granted after August 1, 2010 have
graded vesting features, and Consumers recognizes expense for those awards on a graded vesting
schedule over the required service period. Expense for time-lapse awards is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the required service period. Consumers calculates the fair value of time-lapse restricted stock
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based on the price of CMS Energy’s common stock on the grant date. Consumers calculates the fair
value of TSR restricted stock awards on the grant date using a Monte Carlo simulation. Consumers bases
expected volatilities on the historical volatility of the price of CMS Energy common stock.

The risk-free rate for each valuation was based on the three-year U.S. Treasury yield at the award grant
date. Presented in the following table are the significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the
TSR restricted stock awards:

2012 2011 2010
Expected volatility 20.3 % 29.6 % 30.1 %
Expected dividend yield 4.1 4.6 24
Risk-free rate 0.3 1.0 0.9

Presented in the following table is the weighted-average grant-date fair value of awards under the PISP:

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Weighted-average grant-date fair value per share
Restricted stock granted $ 12.28 $ 14.17 $ 16.27

Presented in the following table are amounts related to restricted stock awards:

In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Fair value of shares that vested during the year $ 8 $ 7 $ 6
Compensation expense recognized 11 10 9
Income tax benefit recognized 4 4 3

At December 31, 2012, $9 million of Consumers’ total unrecognized compensation cost was related to
restricted stock. Consumers expects to recognize this cost over a weighted-average period of 1.7 years.

Presented in the following table is stock option activity under the PISP:

Options Outstanding,
Fully Vested, and Weighted-Average Exercise
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Exercisable Price per Share
Outstanding at beginning of period 61,500 $ 2220
Cancelled or expired (61,500) 22.20
Outstanding at end of period - $ -

Stock options give the holder the right to purchase common stock at the market price on the grant date.
Stock options are exercisable upon grant, and expire up to ten years and one month from the grant date.
Consumers issues new shares of CMS Energy stock when recipients exercise stock options. No stock
options were exercised during 2012. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $1 million
for each of the years ended December 31,2011 and 2010. Consumers does not have any stock options
outstanding at December 31, 2012.
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13: INCOME TAXES

Consumers files a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return and a unitary Michigan income tax return
with CMS Energy and its subsidiaries. Income taxes are allocated based on each company’s separate
taxable income in accordance with the CMS Energy tax sharing agreement.

Presented in the following table is the difference between actual income tax expense on continuing
operations and income tax expense computed by applying the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate:

In Millions, Except Tax Rate

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Income from continuing operations before income taxes $ 736 $ 734 $ 688
Income tax expense at statutory rate 258 257 241
Increase (decrease) in income taxes from:

State and local income taxes, net of federal effect 36 24 26

Other, net 3 (14) (13)
Income tax expense $ 297 $ 267 $ 254
Effective tax rate 40.4 % 36.4 % 36.9 %

Presented in the following table are the significant components of income tax expense on continuing
operations:

In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Current income taxes
Federal $ 110 $ 74 $ 17
State and local 37 32 25

$ 147 $§ 106 § 8

Deferred income taxes

Federal $ 134 $ 159 § 236
State and local 19 6 14
$ 153 $ 165 $ 250
Deferred income tax credit 3) @) 4)
Tax expense $ 297 $§ 267 $§ 254
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Presented in the following table are the principal components of deferred income tax assets (liabilities)

recognized:
In Millions
December 31 2012 2011
Employee benefits $ (36) $ (158)
Gas inventory (147) (155)
Plant, property, and equipment (1,848) (1,742)
Net regulatory tax liability 131 70
Reserves and accruals 41 44
Securitized costs (73) (96)
Tax loss and credit carryforwards 61 67
Other (13) 81
$ (1,884) $ (1,889)
Less valuation allowance €)) €8
Total net deferred income tax liabilities $ (1,885) § (1,890)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation reserves $ 232§ 261
Deferred tax liabilities (2,117) (2,151)
Total net deferred income tax liabilities $ (1,885 $ (1,890)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax effect of temporary
differences between the tax basis of assets or liabilities and the reported amounts on Consumers’
consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-
current according to the classification of the related assets or liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
not related to assets or liabilities are classified according to the expected reversal date of the temporary

differences.

Presented in the following table are the tax loss and credit carryforwards at December 31, 2012:

In Millions

Gross Amount Tax Attribute Expiration

Federal net operating loss carryforward $ 163 $ 56 2024 —-2031

State capital loss carryforward 10 1 2014 -2015

Alternative minimum tax credits 2 2 No expiration

Charitable contribution carryover 6 2 2016
Total tax attributes $ 61

Consumers has provided a valuation allowance of $1 million for the state capital loss carryforward.
Consumers expects to utilize fully tax loss and credit carryforwards for which no valuation has been
provided. It is reasonably possible that further adjustments will be made to the valuation allowances

within one year.
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Presented in the following table is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of uncertain tax

benefits:

In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period 3 $ 57
Reductions for prior-year tax positions - (54)
Additions for prior-year tax positions 1 -
Balance at end of period 4 % 3

Consumers had uncertain tax benefits of $1 million at December 31, 2012, $4 million at

December 31, 2011, and $3 million at December 31, 2010 that, if recognized, would affect the annual

effective tax rate in future years.

Consumers recognizes accrued interest and penalties, where applicable, as part of income tax expense.
Consumers recognized no interest for the years ended December 31,2012 and 2011 and less than

$1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. In 2010, CMS Energy settled with the IRS and, as a
result, Consumers paid $4 million to CMS Energy and eliminated a remaining accrued interest balance of

$1 million.

In November 2010, the IRS concluded its most recent audit of CMS Energy and its subsidiaries.
Consumers’ share of proposed changes was an adjustment of $88 million to taxable income for the years
ended December 31, 2002 through December 31, 2007. Of this amount, $84 million resulted in an
adjustment to the existing net operating loss carryforward; the remaining $4 million increased taxable
income. Most of the adjustments related to the timing of deductions, not the disallowance of deductions.
Consumers accepted the proposed adjustments to taxable income, which resulted in the payment of

$10 million of tax and accrued interest. The impact to net income was less than $1 million.

In May 2012, the IRS completed its audit of CMS Energy and its subsidiaries for 2008 and 2009, as well
as its audit of research and development tax credit claims for 2001 through 2009. The audits resulted in a
$45 million increase in Consumers’ net operating loss carryforward. Consumers’ net income decreased

$1 million as a result of the completion of the audits.

CMS Energy’s federal income tax returns for 2010 and subsequent years remain subject to examination
by the IRS. CMS Energy’s MBT returns for 2008 and subsequent years remain subject to examination by

the State of Michigan.

The amount of income taxes paid is subject to ongoing audits by federal, state, local, and foreign tax
authorities, which can result in proposed assessments. Consumers” estimate of the potential outcome for
any uncertain tax issue is highly judgmental. Consumers believes that its accrued tax liabilities at

December 31, 2012 were adequate for all years.
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14: OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSE

Presented in the following tables are the components of Consumers’ other income and other expense:

In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Other income
Regulatory return on capital expenditures $ 1 $ - 8 17
Gain on CMS Energy common stock 5 4 -
Return on stranded and security costs 1 3 4
All other 9 12 10
Total other income $ 16 $ 19 § 31
In Millions
Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Other expense
Donations $ anp s$ an s (6
Civic and political expenditures 17 3) ?3)
All other 5) (6) 6)
Total other expense $ (B3 $§ (0 § (15

15: REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Reportable segments consist of business units defined by the products and services they offer.
Consumers evaluates the performance of each segment based on its contribution to net income available
to its common stockholder. The reportable segments for Consumers are:

e celectric utility, consisting of regulated activities associated with the generation and distribution of
electricity in Michigan;
e gas utility, consisting of regulated activities associated with the transportation, storage, and
distribution of natural gas in Michigan; and
e other, including a consolidated special-purpose entity for the sale of accounts receivable.

Accounting policies for Consumers’ segments are as described in Note 1, Significant Accounting
Policies. The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of the
individual segments when appropriate. Accounts are allocated among the segments when common
accounts are attributable to more than one segment. The allocations are based on certain measures of
business activities, such as revenue, labor dollars, customers, other operation and maintenance expense,
construction expense, leased property, taxes, or functional surveys. For example, customer receivables
are allocated based on revenue, and pension provisions are allocated based on labor dollars.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are accounted for at current market prices and are eliminated in
consolidated net income available to common stockholders by segment.
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Presented in the following tables is financial information by reportable segment:

In Millions

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Operating revenue

Electric utility $ 4,031 $ 3,913 $ 3,802

Gas utility 1,982 2,340 2,354
Total operating revenue $ 6,013 $ 6,253 $ 6,156
Depreciation and amortization

Electric utility $ 459 $ 412 $ 450

Gas utility 133 130 122
Total depreciation and amortization $ 59 § 542 § 572
Interest charges

Electric utility $ 179 $ 192 $§ 202

Gas utility 63 71 73

Other 2 2 2
Total interest charges $ 244 $ 265 $ 277
Income tax expense

Electric utility $ 227 $ 190 $ 187

Gas utility 70 77 67
Total income tax expense $ 297 $ 267 $ 254
Net income available to common stockholder

Electric utility $ 325 $ 333 $ 303

Gas utility 110 130 127

Other 2 2 2
Total net income available to common stockholder $ 437 $ 465 $ 432
Plant, property, and equipment, gross

Electric utility $ 11,041 $ 10,400 $ 9,944

Gas utility 4,400 4,206 4,063

Other 15 15 15
Total plant, property, and equipment $ 15,456 $ 14,621 $ 14,022
Total assets

Electric utility" $ 10,423 $ 9,938 $ 9,321

Gas utility 5,016 4,956 4,614

Other 836 768 904
Total assets $ 16,275 $ 15,662 $ 14,839
Capital expenditures’

Electric utility $ 921 $ 661 $ 642

Gas utility 340 261 235
Total capital expenditures § 1,261 $§ 922 $ 877

! Amounts include a portion of Consumers’ other common assets attributable to both the electric and gas utility

businesses.

2 Amounts include purchase of capital lease additions. Amounts also include a portion of Consumers’ capital
expenditures for plant and equipment attributable to both the electric and gas utility businesses.
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16: RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Consumers enters into a number of significant transactions with related parties. These transactions

include:

e purchase and sale of electricity from and to affiliates of CMS Enterprises;

e payment of parent company overhead costs to CMS Energy; and
e investment in CMS Energy common stock.

Transactions involving power supply purchases from certain affiliates of CMS Enterprises are based on
avoided costs under PURPA, state law, and competitive bidding. The payment of parent company
overhead costs is based on the use of accepted industry allocation methodologies. These payments are for
costs that occur in the normal course of business.

Presented in the following table are Consumers’ recorded income and expense from related parties as of

December 31:

In Millions
Description Related Party 2011 2010
Purchases of capacity and energy Affiliates of CMS Enterprises $ 81 $ 84

Amounts payable to related parties for purchased power and other services were $11 million at

December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Consumers owned 1.3 million shares of CMS Energy common stock with a fair value of $32 million at
December 31, 2012. For additional details on Consumers’ investment in CMS Energy common stock, see

Note 7, Financial Instruments.

17: IMPAIRMENT CHARGES

In May 2010, Consumers announced plans to defer the development of its proposed 830-MW coal-fueled
plant at its Karn/Weadock generating complex. At that time, Consumers recorded a charge of $3 million
to write off certain capitalized development costs because the costs were deemed not to have long-term
value in connection with the potential future construction of the plant. The project’s air permit, issued by
the MDEQ in December 2009, was set to expire in August 2011 if construction of the coal plant had not
commenced or if Consumers had not been granted an extension of the air permit. In December 2010,
Consumers determined that it would not begin construction before August 2011 as a means of preserving
the air permit. As a result, the likelihood that the plant would be constructed had diminished
significantly. In December 2010, in accordance with accounting standards governing impairment of plant
costs for regulated utilities, Consumers recorded an additional charge of $19 million to write off the
remaining previously capitalized development costs associated with the proposed plant. The total charge
of $22 million was recorded in other operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010. In

December 2011, Consumers announced the cancellation of the proposed plant.

Consumers recorded no other impairments of long-lived assets for the years ended December 31, 2012,

2011, and 2010.
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Name of Respondent This report is: Date of Repot Year of Report
Consumers Energy (1) [ X ] An Original (Mo, Da, Year)
Company (2)[ 1A Resubmission 4117/2013 December 31, 2012

18: QUARTERLY FINANCIAL AND COMMON STOCK INFORMATION

(UNAUDITED)
In Millions
2012
Quarters Ended March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
Operating revenue $ 1,675 $ 1,282 $ 1,448 $ 1,608
Operating income 183 260 334 207
Net income 76 122 163 78
Preferred stock dividends - 1 1 -
Net income available to common stockholder 76 121 162 78
In Millions
2011
Quarters Ended March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
Operating revenue $ 1,988 $ 1,303 $ 1,397 $ 1,565
Operating income 300 207 305 173
Net income 153 92 155 67
Preferred stock dividends - 1 1 -
Net income available to common stockholder 153 91 154 67
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Name of Respondent

Consumers Energy Company

This report is:

(1) [ X1 An Original
(2)[ ] A Resubmission

Date of Repot
(Mo, Da, Year)
4/17/2013

Year of Report

December 31, 2012

STATEMENT OF ACCUMULATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

1. Report in columns (b), (c), (d) and (e) the amounts of accumulated other comprehensive income items, on a net-of-tax basis, where

appropriate.

2. Report in columns (f) and (g) the amounts of other categories of other cash flow hedges

3. For each category of hedges that have been accounted for as "fair value hedges", report the accounts affected and the related

amounts in a footnote.

Lin Unrealized Gains and Minimum Pension
e Losses on Available for | Liability and adjustment | Foreign Currency
No. Iltem Sale Securities (net amount) Hedges Other Adjustments
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e)
Balance of Account 219 at
1 [Beginning of Preceding Year 15,763,040 (15,445,595)
Preceding Year to Date
Reclassifications from Acct 219 to
2 |[Net Income (2,756,433) 1,180,390
Preceding Year to Date Changes in
3 [|Fair Value 3,646,532 0 (4,128,194)
4 |Total (lines 2 and 3) 890,099 (2,947,804)
Balance of 219 at End of Preceding
5 |Year 16,653,139 0 (18,393,399)
Balance of Account 219 at
6 |Beginning of Current Year 16,653,139 0 (18,393,399)
Current Year to Date
Reclassifications from Acct 219 to
7 |Net Income (2,953,019) 0 1,809,808
Current Year to Date Changes in
8 |Fair Value 3,248,664 0 (8,463,282)
9 |Total (lines 7 and 8) 295,645 0 (6,653,474)
Balance of Account 219 at End of
10 |Current Year 16,948,784 0 (25,046,873)
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Consumers Energy Company

This report is:
(1) [ X1An Original
(2) [ 1A Resubmission

Date of Repot Year of Report

(Mo, Da, Year)
4/17/2013 December 31, 2012

STATEMENT OF ACCUMULATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES (cont'd)

Line Other Cash Flow Hedges

Other Cash Flow Hedges

Totals for each category | Net Income (carried

of items recorded in forward from Page |Total Comprehensive

No. Interest Rate Swaps (specify) Account 219 117, Line 78) Income
(®) ()] (h) i
1 0 317,445
2 0 (1,576,043)
3 0 (481,662)
; : e I T
5 0 (1,740,260)
6 0 (1,740,260)
7 0 (1.143211) |
8 0 (5,214,618)
9 0 (6,357,829) 6,357,829

MPSC FORM P-521 (Rev 12-05)

Page 122b



Name of Respondent

Consumers Energy Company

This Report Is:
(1) [ X] An Original
(2) [ ] A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Da, Yr)

04/17/13

Year of Report
December 31, 2012

SUMMARY OF UTILITY PLANT AND ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION,
AMORTIZATION AND DEPLETION

Line Item Total Electric
No.
@ (b c
1 UTILITY PLANT
2 In Service
3 Plant in Service (Classified) 14,946,824,001 10,053,740,326
4 Property Under Capital Leases 176,735,788 171,883,778
5 Plant Purchased or Sold 0 0
6 Completed Construction not Classified
7 Experimental Plant Unclassified
8 TOTAL (Enter Total of lines 3 thru 7) 15,123,559,789 10,225,624,104
9 Leased to Others
10 |Held for Future Use 5,680,093 5,471,561
11 |Construction Work in Progress 1,075,654,999 691,807,497
12  |Acquisition Adjustments 214,466,922 214,183,647
13 TOTAL Utility Plant (Enter Total of lines 8 thru 12) 16,419,361,803 11,137,086,809
14 |Accum. Prov. For Depr., Amort., & Depl. 6,400,359,261 3,837,731,029
15 Net Utility Plant (Enter Total of line 13 less 14) 10,019,002,542 7,299,355,780
DETAIL OF ACCUMULATED PROVISIONS FOR
16 DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND DEPLETION
17 |In Service:
18 Depreciation 6,170,496,375 3,789,608,168
19 Amort. & Depl. Of Producing Natural Gas Land & Land Rights 8,352,434 _
20 Amort. Of Underground Storage Land & Land Rights 4,674,341
21 Amort. Of Other Utility Plant 189,813,642 21,207,796
22 TOTAL In Service (Enter Total of lines 18 thru 21) 6,373,336,792 3,810,815,964
24 Depreciation 0
25 Amortization & Depletion
26 TOTAL Leased to Others (Enter Total of lines 24 and 25) 0 0
27 |Held for Future Use —<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>